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April17, 2018 

Report of Independent Auditors 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholder ofValidus Reinsurance, Ltd. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements ofValidus Reinsurance, Ltd. and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2017 and December 31, 

2016, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, of shareholder's 
equity and of cash flows for the years then ended. 

Management's responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; 
this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's 
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness ofthe Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of 
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position ofValidus Reinsurance, Ltd. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017 

and December 31, 2016, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other Matter 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required 
supplemental information under Accounting Standards Update 2015-09, Disclosure about Short­
Duration Contracts labelled as Unaudited within Note 12 on pages 37 to 40 be presented to supplement 
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the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a patt of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied cettain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of 
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Chartered Professional Accountants 

Reference: Report of Independent Audito1·s on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Validus Reinsumnce, Ltd. 
and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 and for the years then ended 
Page2 of2 



Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
As at December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share amounts) 

Assets 

Decem ~er 3 1, 
201 7 

l' ixcd maturity investments trading, at fair value (amortized cost: 20 17- $4,719,474; 2016---$4,453,885). .. $ 4,701,350 $ 

165,720 

345, 158 

100, 137 

526,099 

Shorl-lenn investments trading, at fa ir value (amortized cost: 20 17-$165,720; 20 16-$1 17,562) ...... ........ . 

Other investments, at fair value (cost: 2017-$300,6 10; 20 16-$343,337) .................................................... . 

Investments in investment affil iates, equity method (cost: 2017-$6 I ,944; 20 16---$84,840) ........................ . 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................................................................................... ........ ............................. . 

Restricted cash ............................ ...................................................................................................................... . 

Total investments and cash ......... ........ ........................... ....... ............................ ...................... ............ ......... .. 

Investments in operating affi liates, equity method (cost: 2017- $ 120,071; 2016-$232,98 1) 

Structured notes receivable from AlphaCal I LS fund ............................... ............................. ......................... .. 

Premiums receivable ........................................... ...... ............... .. ............................. ............ ............................ .. 

Deferred acquisition costs ...... .. ..................... .. 

Prepaid reinsurance premiums ............................................................... . 

Securities lending collateral ........ .......................................................... . 

l.oss reserves recoverable ......................................................................... . 

Paid losses recoverable .......... .................... .......................... ...................... ..................... ............................... .. 

Income taxes recoverable ..................................... ........................... ...................... ....................................... . 

Deferred lax asset .................................................. ...................... . 

Receivable lor investments sold ............................................... ....................................................................... .. 

Balances due from atli liates .......... ................................................................................................................. .. 

Goodwill .............................. ................................................................................................................... .. 

Intangible assets ..................................................................................... ........................................................... . 

Accrued investment income ............................................................................... .......................................... .... . 

Funds withheld .............................................. ........................... .......................... . , .................................. . 

Other assets ............................................................................... ............................................................ .. 

62,847 

5,901,3 11 

145,061 

10,000 

654,559 

208,945 

85,847 

2,7 17 

915,877 

55,876 

8,969 

117,689 

11,93 1 

185,773 

209, 180 

79,566 

23,548 

1,440,804 

357,192 

Total assets .... ........... ................................................................. .................................................................. ... $ 10,344,845 ======= 
Liabilities 

Reserve for losses and loss expenses...... ............................... ........................................................................... $ 3,844,292 

Unearned premiums ... ........................................................................................... ............................................ . 1,060,999 

Reinsurance balances payable ............................. ........................... ........................ ......................................... .. 3 11 ,697 

Securities lending payable ....................................................................................................... ................ ........ . 2,717 

Income taxes payable .............. .............................................................................................. . .. ...... ....... .......... . 302 

Deterred tax liability ........................................................... ...................................................................... ........ . 4,600 

Payable for investments purchased ...... . 72,644 

Balances due to aflil iates ............... ..................................................................................................... . 241,406 

Debentures payable .......................... .................... .... .................................................................. . 249,358 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses ........................................................................................................ . 308,207 - - - ----
Total l ia~ilities ............................. ............................................................................. .......... ................... ....... . 6,096,222 

Shareholder's equity 

Common shares, I ,000,000 authorized, par value $ 1.00 

Issued and outstanding (20 17: I ,000,000; 2016: 1,000,000) ............ . 1,000 

Additional paid-in-capital ...................... ................................ ................................. ............. ........................... . 2,862,372 

Accumulated other comprehensive income .................. ........... .. 4 ,782 

Retained earnings ...................... ................. ................................................ ................................................. .. 1,380,469 

Total s h:rreholder 's equi ty .................................................... ........................................................................ . 4,248,623 

Total liabilities and shareholder's equity ......................................................................... .............. . $ 10,344,845 

$ 

$ 

The accompanying notes are an integral pmt of these consolidated financial statements 

Dccem~er 3 1, 
201 6 

$ 

4.4211, 165 

11 7,558 

40 1, 123 

100,43 1 

302,255 

15,000 

5,364,532 

309537 

452,497 

209,666 

29,60 1 

9,779 

22 1,963 

14,085 

4,0 17 

38,887 

3,622 

63,527 

t76,365 

2 1,669 

20,402 

1,502,558 

33, 162 

8,475,869 

2,7311,203 

989.876 

45 ,0 11 

10,245 

682 

3,33 1 

23,700 

145,280 

247,426 

73,663 

4,277,4 17 

1,000 

2,7 19,408 

23 

1,478,02 1 

4, 198,452 

8,475,869 



Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income 
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Revenues 

Gross premiums written ....... .. ....... .. ...... .... ...... .. ... ..... ... ... ......... .. ......... ..... .... .. . 

Reinsurance premiums ceded ....... ... .. .. ...... .. .. ............. ..... ... .. ... .......... .... ...... ... . 

Net premiums written .. .... ............. ....... ......... .... .... .... ... ... .. .. ...... . .. .. .......... .... ... . 

Change in unearned premiums .... .. .. ................ .. ..... .. .... .. .......... .. .... .. ... .. .. ...... .. 

Net premiums earned .................... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... .. ... .. .... .......... .. ............ .... ..... .. .... . 

Net investment income ... .. . .. .. ...... ......... ...... . .. .. ....... . .. ... .. ....... .... .... .. ....... ........ . 

Net realized gains on investments ...... ........ .. ............................. .......... .. ........ .. 

Net change in unrealized (losses) gains on investments ...... .. .... .. .... .... .. .. ...... . 

Income (loss) from investment affiliates ........................ .. .. .... ...... ...... ............ . 

Other insurance related income and other income .................................... .. .. .. 

Foreign exchange losses .... ... .... .. ........... .......... .................... ......... .... .. ........ ... . . 

Total revenues ..... ... ... ..... .. ... ................ ........ .. ... .. ....... ......... ...................... .... . . 

Expenses 

Losses and loss expenses .. .... .. ............... .. .. ....... .... .. ... .. .. .. .... .. .... .. ............ .. .... .. 

Policy acquisition costs ... .............. .... ... .. ... .. .. ... ...... ... .. .. .... ..... .... ....... .... .. .. .... .. 

General and administrative expenses ........ .... .. .... .... .... ........ .. .... .. .. ...... .. .. ...... .. 

Share c01npensation expenses ....... ....... ... ... ......... .......... ..... ... ... ................. ... .. . 

Finance expenses .... ... .......... ................ ....... ... ..... .... ......... ... ... ...... ... ... ..... ... ..... . 

Transaction expenses .............. .... ... ....... ...... ... ..... ....... .... ..... ... ... ... ...... ........ .... .. 

Total expenses ... ....... ... ... .... ... .... .. ................... .... .. .... ...... ... ... ... .. ....... ..... ....... .. 

Income before taxes and (loss) income from operating affiliates ............ .. 

Tax benefit .............. .... .. ... ... ... ... ....... ... ........ .. ....... ..... .... ....................... .. ... ... ... . 

(Loss) income from operating affiliates .......... ...... ..... .................................... . 

Income from structured notes receivable from AlphaCat ILS fund .............. .. 

December 31, 
2017 

$ 2,568,293 

(390,298) 

2,177,995 

10 1,093 

2,279,088 

137,708 

6,579 

(6,426) 

22,010 

53,002 

(7,260) 

2,484,701 ___ ....:..____;_ __ 

1,627,240 

596,638 

203,299 

11 ,646 

14,429 

3,261 
-------'---

2,456,51 3 
--------'---

28,188 

10,409 

(25,790) 

641 
------­

13,448 Net income...... .. .... ....... .. ..... .. ................................ ... ............... ... ........... ...... .... $ =========== 
Net incorne ........ .... .. ... .. .. .... ....................... ... ... . . .... .................. ... .............. .. .. ... $ 13,448 

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax: .... .. ..... .. .. ... ... ... ... .. .... .... .. ...... . 

Change in minimum pension liability ........ .............. ...... .......... .. ...... ............ . 2,869 

Change in fair value of cash flow hedges .. .. ...... ............... .................... ...... .. 1,890 ____ ___:_ __ 
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax ............. ............. ...... ....... .. .. .. .. 4,759 ____ ___:_ __ 

Decem bet· 31, 
2016 

$ 2,325,197 

(230,147) 

2,095,050 

(95,956) 

1,999,094 

127,832 

5,915 

28,382 

(2,083) 

63,994 

(208) 

2,222,926 

1,020,245 

579,850 

161 ,330 

11,617 

12,157 

1,785,199 

437,727 

19,018 

19,964 

615 

$ 477,324 

$ 477,324 

(484) 

(484) 

18,207 $ 476,840 Comprehensive income ...... ...... .... ............... .............. ..... ............... ....... .. ...... . ::;;$~===::::::::::~~ ~==~~~;;, 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Conso lidated Statements of Shareholder 's Equity 
Fot· the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

Common shares 

Decem be•· 31, 
201 7 

Decem be•· 31, 
2016 

Balance, beginning and end of year ...................... .. ... ............. .......... ..... .... ..... $ 1,000 $ 1,000 ------
Additional paid-in-capital 

Balance, beginning of year..................... .......... ..... ...... .... ....... .................. .... ... $ 2,7 19,408 $ 2,900, 190 

Contributions from parent company. ...... ..... .... .. .... ............ ........................... 250,000 100,000 

Distributions to parent company ................... .. ............... ... .. .. .... ......... ........... (115,000) (290,000) 

Share compensation expenses....... ... ...... .... ..... ..... ..................... .. ... ..... .......... II ,646 I I ,617 

Share compensation issuance costs..... ............ ......................... ............. .. ... .. . (3,682) (2,399) ____ ..:....__.:... -----'----'-

Balance, end of year .. .... ............... .. ............ .. .......... ................................ ... ..... . $ 2,862,372 $ 2,7 19,408 
-------

Accumulated other comprehensive income 

Balance, beginning of year ........ ............ ............... .... .... .. .... .. .. .. .. .... .. .. .... .... ..... $ 23 $ 

Other comprehensive income (loss) net oftax....... .... ...... .... ........ ...... ....... .... 4,759 
-------

Balance, end of year ............................................. ........ .. ........ .. ............ .... .. ..... $ 4,782 $ 

507 

(484) 

23 
-------

Retained earnings 

Balance, beginning of year... ... ............... ... .. ..... ...... .. ... ....... ................ ........ .. ... $ 1,4 78,021 $ 1,000,697 

Dividends paid ............................. .... .............. .. ... ............................ ............ .. (Il l ,000) 

Net income ..... .... ... .......................................... ...... ... ... .... ... ... .. ...... ... ... ..... ..... 13,448 477,324 -------=---
Balance,endofyear .. ............... .. .... ... ................. .. ............... ...... .......... .. .......... $ 1,380,469 $ 1,478,021 ___ ..:...._..:...._ __ 
Total shareholder's equity .. ............ ... ......... ..... ... ........ ... ....... ......................... $ 4,248,623 =$==4=·=' 9=8=,4=52= 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars) 

C ash flows provided by (used in) opera ting activities 

Net income ................................... ................... ....... .......... .. .. ........................................ ...... ... ........ .. 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cush provided by operating activities: 

Share compensation expenses .................................................................. .............. ... .............. ... .. 
Loss (income) from investment and operating affiliates, net .................................................... .. 
Net realized und change in net unrealized gains on investments ........ ... ... ......................... ........ .. 
Amorti~.ation of intangible assets ................. .. ............................................................................ .. 
Foreign exchange (gains) losses included in net income .......................... .............................. .... . 
Amortization of premium on fixed maturity itwestments ............................................... ............ . 

Change in operational balance sheet items: 
Premiums receivable ................................. .............................................................................. .... . 

Deferred acquisition costs ...................... ..................................................................................... . 
Prepaid reinsurance premiums .... ............................................................................................... .. 
Loss reserves recoverable .......................................................................................................... .. 
Paid losses recoverable ............................................................................................................... . 
Reserve fo r losses and loss expenses .......................................................................................... . 
Unearned premiums .............. ...................................................................................................... . 
Reinsurance balances payable ........... ...... .................................................................................... . 
Funds withheld ................ ............................................................................. ............................... . 
Other operational balance sheet items, net ..................................................................... ............ . 

Net cash provided by operating activities .... .......... ... ................................................................ .. 

Cash Rows IH·ovidcd by (used in) investing activities 
Proceeds on sales of fixed maturity investments ............................................... .. .................... .. .. 
Proceeds on maturities or fixed maturity investments .............. ......................... .. .... ................... . 
Purchases o r fixed maturi ty investments ......... ... .. ...................................................................... . 
(Purchases) sales of short-term investments, net ............. ............ ............................................... . 
Sales (purchases) of other investments, net ................ ... ...................... .... ................................. .. . 
Purchase of subsidiary, net of cash ............... ....... ........ ........................................ ................. ...... . 
Purchase of related subsidiary, net of cash ................................................................................. . 
Decrease (increase) in securities lending collateral ................................................................... .. 
Investments in operating a ffiliates ........................................................................... ................... . 
Redemptions from operating affiliates .. ..................................................................... .............. ... . 
Purchases of structured notes from AlphaCatiLS fund , net.. .................................................... .. 
(Investments) deployment of subscriptions made in advance with AlphaCat ILS fund , net.. .. .. . 
Distributions from (investments in) investment affi liates, net.. .................................................. . 

Net cash used in investing activities .......................................................................................... .. 

Cash Rows provided by (used in) financing activities 
Share compensation issuance costs .......... .......... .............. ........................................................... . 
Proceeds drawn on credit fac ilities ..................... ...... ................................................................ .. . 

Oividends paid .................... ................... ................................................... .. ........................... .... .. 
Contributions from parent company ............... ............. .......... ..................................................... . 
Distributions to parent company ............................... ... ........ ... ............................................... .... .. 
(Decrease) increase in securities lending payable .................................... ................................. .. 

Net cnsh provided by (used in) financing ac tivities ...... ................. ....................................... .... .. 
Effect of foreign currency rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ......................................... .. 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cas h equi\'alents and r·estricted cash ............................. .. 
Cash and cash equivalents and t·estricted rash- beginning of ycn t· ....................................... . 
Cash and cash equivalents and restricted c:tsh- end of year ................................................. .. 

Supplementa l informa tion 

Taxes paid during the year .......................................................................................................... . 
Inte rest paid during the year ...................................................................................................... .. 

Noncash operat ing activities 
Other operational balance sheet items, net ................................................................................. . 

Noncash financing activities 
Capital contribution from parent company ............................................................... .................. . 

Decem bet· 31,2017 

$ 13,448 

11,646 
3,780 
(153) 

6,183 
(7,106) 
10,749 

362,390 
(3,395) 

170,91 1 
(639,715) 

(23,803) 
1,009,316 
(335,525) 

(27,515) 
61,754 

(309,0 13) 
303 952 

2,609,153 
373,179 

(3, 174,471) 
(26,592) 
( 19,030) 

(183 ,923) 

7,062 
(9,844) 

153,686 
( 1,135) 

(13,305) 
22 304 

(262,916) 

(3,682) 
206,000 

(111,000) 
250,000 

(1 15,000) 

(7,528) 
218 790 

II 865 
27 1,69 1 
3 17255 

$ Sllll.946 

$ 3,974 
$ 11,973 

$ 

$ 

Oecemller31, 2016 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

477,324 

11 ,6 17 
(17,881) 
(34,297) 

1,505 
4,243 

13,473 

(68,663) 
(28,490) 

(4,083) 
(93,526) 

(5,324) 
(25,202) 
100,039 

17,370 
38,041 

(30, 148) 
355 998 

2,022, 156 
276,664 

(2,477,375) 
76,443 

(45,900) 

12,393 
(4,9 16) 

(36,136) 
65,553 
(8,865) 
25,102 

04,841) 
(109,722) 

(2,399) 

(290,000) 

4 9 16 
(287,483) 

(4,727) 
(45,934) 
363 189 
3{7.255 

2,485 
9,801 

( 100,000) 

100,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 
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Valid us Reinsu•·ance, Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31,2017 and 2016 
(Expressed inlhousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounls) 

1. Nature of the business 

Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. (the "Company" or "Validus Re") was incorporated under the laws of Bermuda on 
October 19, 2005. The Com pany is I 00% owned by Valid us Ho ldings, Ltd. (the " parent company" or " Validus 
Holdings") which was also incorporated under the laws of Bermuda on October 19, 2005. Yalidus Re is registered as 
a Class 4 insurer under The Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda, amendments thereto and related Regulations ("The Act"). 
The Company primarily offers treaty reinsurance coverage on a global basis in the Property and Specialty lines markets. 

On September 4, 2009, pursuant to an Amalgamation Agreement, Valid us Holdings acqu ired a ll of IPC Holdings 
Ltd. ("!PC") outstanding common shares in exchange for 0.9727 common shares ofValidus Holdings and $7.50 cash 
per IPC's common share . TPC's operations were focused on sh011-taillines of reinsurance. The prima1y lines in which 
fPC conducted business were property catastrophe reinsurance and, to a li mited extent, property-per-risk excess, aviation 
(inc luding satellite) and other sh011-tail reinsurance on a worldwide basis. The acquisition of !PC was undertaken to 
gain a strategic advantage in the reinsurance market and increase the parent company's capital base. The investment 
in IPC was transferred to the Company by Validus Holdings in September 2009 as $1,325,398 of additional paid-in 
capital. 

On November 30, 2012, pursuant to a merger agreement, Valid us Holdings acquired all of the outstanding common 
shares of Flagstone Re insurance Ho ldings, S.A. ("Flagstone") in exchange for 0.1935 common shares of Valid us 
Holdings and $2.00 cash per F lagstone common share (the "Flagstone Acquis ition"). The investment in Flagstone was 
transferred to the Company by Valid us Holdings on November 30, 2012 as $720,123 o f additional paid- in capital, 
strengthening the Company 's leading prope11y catastrophe reinsurance and short-tail specialty insurance platform. 

On April 25, 2013, the Company acquired Va lid us Re Americas, Ltd . (formerly Longhorn Re, Ltd.), a single 
contract, Bermuda-domici led crop re insurer, for cash equal to its tangible net assets. 

On October 9, 2013, the Company completed the sale of its wholly-Qwned Cyprus-domiciled subsidiary, Flagstone 
Alliance Insurance and Re insurance pic. for net cash proceeds of $2 1,400. 

On October 2, 20 14, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Western World Insurance Group, inc. 
("Western World"), aU .S.-based specialty excess and surplus lines insurance company, for an aggregate purchase price 
of$692,305 in cash. The Westem World acquisition was undertaken to enhance the Company's access to the specialty 
U.S. commercial insurance market. Addit ional factors that added to the value of Western World inc luded its State 
Licenses, Brand Name, Distribution Network and Technology. 

On May I, 20 17, the Company, through it 's who lly-Qwned subsidiary Western World, acqui red all of the 
outstanding capita l stock of Crop Risk Services, Inc. ("CRS"), a prima1y crop insurance managing genera l agent 
(''MGA"), for an aggregate purchase price of $185,576 in cash. The CRS acquisition was undertaken to expand the 
Company's presence in U.S. prima1y specialty lines. Refer to Note 5, "Business combinations," for addit ional 
information. 

Reportable lines of busines.s 

During the fmn1h quarter of20 17, to better align the Company 's disclosures with its current strategy, the Company 
changed its primary lines of business to "Property," "Specialty - Short-tai l" and "Specialty - Other." The change in 
primmy lines of business had no impac t on the Company's historical consol idated financia l positions, results of 
operations or cash flows as previously reported. Where applicable, all prior periods presented have been reclassified 
to conform to this new presentation. 
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Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts) 

2. Basis of preparation and consolidation 

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America ("U .S. GAAP"). The Company consolidates in these Consolidated Financial 
Statements the results of operations and financial position of all voting interest entities ("VOE" ) in which the Company 
has a controlling financial interest and all variable interest entities ("VIE") in which the Company is considered to be 
the primary beneficiary. The consolidation assessment, including the determination as to whether an entity qua lifies as 
a VIE or VOE, depends on the facts and circumstances surrounding each entity. 

All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 

The preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the repot1ed amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the repot1ed amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the repot1ing period. While the amounts included in the Consolidated Financial Statements reflect management's best 
estimates and assumptions, actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company's principal estimates include: 

• the reserve for losses and loss expenses; 

• the premium written on a line slip or proportional basis; 

• the valuation of goodwill and intangible assets; 

• the loss reserves recoverable, including the provision for uncollectible amounts; and 

• the valuation of invested assets and other financial instruments. 

The term "ASC" used in these notes refers to Accounting Standard Codification issued by the United States Financial 
Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB"). 

3. Significant accounting policies 

The following is a summary of significant accounting pol icies adopted by the Company: 

(a) Pt·emiums 

Reinsurance contracts can be written on a risks attaching or losses occurring basis. Under risks attaching reinsurance 
contracts, all c laims from cedants ' underlying policies incepting during the contract period are covered, even if they 
occur after the expiration date of the reinsurance contract. fn contrast, losses occurring reinsurance contracts cover all 
claims occurring during the period of the contract, regardless of the inception dates of the underlying policies. Any 
claims occurring after the expiration of the losses occurring contract are not covered. 

Insurance and reinsurance premiums written are recorded at the inception of the policy. Reinsurance premiums 
are estimated based on information received from brokers, ceding companies and reinsureds, and any subsequent 
differences arising on such estimates are recorded in the periods in which they are determined. 

Premiums written are earned on a pro-rated basis over the term of the related policy or contract. For direct insurance, 
and for facultative and losses occurring reinsurance contracts, the earnings period is generally the same as the term of 
the related contract or policy. For reinsurance contracts written on a risks attaching basis, the earnings period is based 
on the terms of the underlying contracts and policies and is generally assumed to be 24 months. The pot1ion of the 
premiums written applicable to the unexpired terms of the underlying contracts and policies in force is recorded as 
unearned premiums. 

Reinstatement premiums are recorded at the time a loss event occurs and coverage limits for the remaining life of 
the contract are reinstated under predefined contract terms. The accrual of reinstatement premiums is based on our 
estimate of losses and loss expenses, which reflects management's judgment, as described in Note 3( c), "Reserve for 
losses and loss expenses" below. 
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(b) Policy acquisition costs 

Policy acquisition costs are costs that vmy with, and are directly related to, the successful production of new and 
renewal business, and consist principally of commissions and brokerage expenses. Acquisition costs are shown net of 
commissions eamed on reinsurance ceded. However, if the sum of a contract's expected losses and loss expenses and 
deferred acquisition costs exceeds related unearned premiums, a premium deficiency is determined to exist. In this 
event, deferred acqu isition costs are immediately expensed to the extent necessaty to eliminate the premium deficiency. 
If the premium deficiency exceeds deferred acquisition costs then a liabil ity is accrued for the excess deficiency. There 
were no s ignificant premium deficiency adjustments recognized during the periods presented herein. 

Policy acquisition costs also include profit commissions, which are recognized on a basis consistent with our 
estimate of losses and loss expenses. 

(c) Reserve for losses and loss expenses 

The reserve for losses and loss expenses includes reserves for unpaid reported losses ("case reserves") and for 
losses incurred but not reported ("IBNR"). Case reserves are established by management based on reports from brokers, 
ceding companies and insureds and represents the unpaid portion of the estimated ultimate cost of events or conditions 
that have been repmted to, or specifically identified by, the Company. rBNR reserves are established by management 
based on actuarially determined estimates of ultimate losses and loss expenses. Inherent in the estimate of ultimate 
losses and loss expenses are expected trends in claim severity and frequency and other factors which may vaty 
significantly as claims are settled. 

The period of time from the occurrence of a loss to the reporting of a loss to the Company and to the settlement 
of the Company's liabi lity may be several months or years. During this period, additional facts and trends may be 
revealed. Accordingly, losses and loss expenses ultimately paid may differ materially from the amounts recorded in 
the Consolidated Financial Statements. These estimates are reviewed regularly and, as experience develops and new 
information becomes known, the reserves are adjusted as necessaty. These adjustments sometimes lead to an increase 
or decrease in ultimate losses, and at other times lead to a reallocation between IBNR and specific case reserves. 
Adjustments to ultimate loss estimates, if any, are recorded in earnings in the period in which they become known. 
Prior period development arises from changes to these estimates recognized in the current year that relate to losses and 
loss expenses that were incurred in previous calendar years. 

Although there is normally a lag in receiving reinsurance data from cedants, the Company currently has adequate 
procedures in place regarding the timeliness related to the processing of assumed reinsurance information and there is 
no significant backlog. The Company actively manages its relationships with brokers and clients and considers existing 
disputes with counterparties to be in the normal course of business. 

(d) Reinsurance 

The Company enters into reinsurance and retrocession agreements in order to mitigate its accumulation of loss, 
reduce its liability on individual risks, enable it to undetwrite policies with higher limits and increase its aggregate 
capacity. Ceded reinsurance premiums are accounted for on bases consistent with those used in accounting for the 
underlying premiums assumed. Prepaid reinsurance premiums represent the portion of premiums ceded applicable to 
the unexpired term of policies in force. 

Loss reserves recoverable on unpaid losses represent amounts that will be collectible from reinsurers once the 
losses are paid. Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses represents amounts currently due from reinsurers. The 
recognition of reinsurance recoverable requires two key judgments. In determining the Company's ceded LBNR, the 
first judgment involves the estimation of the amount of gross IBNR to be ceded to reinsurers. Ceded IBNR is developed 
as patt of the Company's loss reserving process and consequently, its estimation is subject to risks and uncertainties 
similar to the estimation of gross IBNR. 
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(e) Investments 

The Company classifies its fixed maturity and shot1-term investments as trading and accounts for its other 
investments in accordance with ASC Topic 825 "Financial Instruments. " As such, all investments are carried at fair 
value with interest and dividend income and realized and unrealized gains and losses included in net income. 

All investment transactions are recorded on a first-in-first-out basis and realized gains and losses on the sale of 
investments are determined on the basis of amortized cost (or cost). Interest on fixed maturity securities is recorded in 
net investment income when earned and includes amortization of premium or accretion of discount. 

For mortgage-backed securities, and any other holdings which carry the risk of prepayment, prepayment 
assumptions are evaluated and revised as necessa1y. Any adjustments required due to the resultant change in effective 
yields and maturities are recognized retrospectively. Prepayment fees or call premiums that are only payable to the 
Company when a security is called pri01· to its maturity are earned when received and reflected in net investment income. 

Sh011-term investments primarily comprise investments with a remaining maturity of less than one year at time of 
purchase and money market funds held at the Company's investment managers. Certain short-term investments relate 
to funds held in trust in suppot1 of collateralized reinsurance transactions. 

Restricted cash primarily relates to funds held in trust in support of collateral ized reinsurance transactions. 

The fair va lue of other investments is generally recorded on the basis of the net asset valuation criteria established 
by the managers of the investments, normally based upon the governing documents of such investments. In addition, 
due to a lag in reporting, some of the fund managers, fund administrators, or both, are unable to provide final fund 
va luations as of the Company's reporting date. ln these circumstances, the Company estimates the fair value of these 
funds by slatting with the prior month's or prior quarter's fund valuation, adjusting these valuations for capita l calls, 
redemptions or distributions and the impact of changes in foreign cunency exchange rates, and then estimating the 
return for the current period. In circumstances in which the Company estimates the return for the current period, it uses 
all credible information available. This includes utilizing preliminary estimates repot1ed by its fund managers, obtaining 
the valuation of underlying portfolio investments where such underlying investments are publicly traded and therefore 
have a readily observable price, using information that is available to the Company with respect to the underlying 
investments, reviewing various indices for similar investments or asset classes, as well as estimating returns based on 
the results of similar types of investments for which the Company has reported results, or other valuation methods, as 
necessary. Actual final fund valuations may differ, perhaps materially so, from the Company's estimates and these 
differences are recorded in the period they become known as a change in estimate. 

Investments in which the Company has s ignificant influence over the operating and financial policies ofthe in vestee 
are accounted for under the equity method of accounting. Under this method, the Company records its propm1ionate 
share of income or loss from such investments in its resu lts for the period. 

(f) Fait· value of financial instruments 

Fair value is defined as the price received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market pat1icipants at the measurement date reflecting the highest and best use valuation concepts. ASC Topic 
820 "Fair Value lvfeasurement and Disclosure" provides a framework for measuring fair value by creating a hierarchy 
of fair value measurements that distinguishes market data between observable independent market inputs and 
unobservable market assumptions by the repot1ing entity. The guidance f mther expands disclosures about such fair 
value measurements. The guidance appl ies broadly to most existing accounting pronouncements that require or permit 
fair value measurements (including both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities) but does not require any new 
fair value measurements. The Company has adopted all authoritative guidance in effect as of the balance sheet date 
regarding certain market conditions that allow for fair value measurements that incorporate unobservable inputs where 
active market transaction based measurements are unavailable. 
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(g) Derivative instruments 

The Company enters into various derivative instruments in the form of foreign currency f01ward exchange contracts 
and interest rate swap contracts. These derivative instruments are used to manage exposures to currency and interest 
rate risks and to enhance the efficiency of the Company's investment portfolio. All of the Company's outstanding 
derivative financial instruments are recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at their fair values. The effect on 
earn ings from recognizing the fair values of these derivative financial instruments depends on their intended use, their 
hedge des ignation, and their effectiveness in offsetting changes in the fair va lues of the exposures they are hedging. 

To quali fy for hedge accounting treatment, a derivative must be highly effective in mitigating the c hanges in the 
fair value or cash flows of the hedged item. The Company formally documents all relationships between designated 
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undettaking various 
hedge transactions. The documentation process includes linking derivatives to specific assets or liabilities on the balance 
sheet, and assessing, both at the hedge's inception and on an ongoing basis, whether the derivatives that are used in 
hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting the designated changes of the hedged items. The Company 
currently applies the long haul method when assessing a hedge's effectiveness. 

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when it is determined that the derivative is no longer 
highly effective in offsetting the designated changes of the hedged item, the derivative is de-designated as a hedging 
instrument, or the derivative expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. When hedge accounting is discontinued because 
the Company becomes aware that it is not probable that the forecasted transaction wi ll occur, the derivative continues 
to be carried on the balance sheet at its fair value, and ga ins and losses that were included as patt of accumulated other 
comprehensive income are rec lass ified and recognized immediately in earnings. 

Derivatives nor designated as hedging instruments 

Changes in the fa ir values of derivative instruments that are not designated as hedges are reported currently in 
earnings. Refer to Note I O(a), "Derivatives not designated as hedging instmments, ''for ftuther details. 

Cash Flow Hedges 

Cash flow hedges are derivative instruments used to reduce or eliminate adverse fluctuations in cash flows of 
anticipated or forecas ted transactions. Changes in the ir fair values are reported in equity as a component of accumulated 
other comprehensive income. Amounts in accumulated other comprehensive income are reclassified to earnings when 
the related hedged items affect earnings or the anticipated transactions are no longer probable. Refer to Note I O(b), 
"Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges," for furt her deta ils. 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents 

The Company considers time deposits and money market funds with an original maturity of one month or less as 
equivalent to cash. 

(i) Foreign exchange 

The U.S. dollar is the functional c urrency of the Company and its subsidiaries. For these compani es, monetary 
assets and liabi lities denominated in foreign currencies are revalued at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet 
date and revenues and expenses denominated in foreign currenc ies are translated at the prevai ling exchange rate on the 
transaction date with the resulting foreign exchange gains and losses included in earnings. Non-monetary assets and 
liabil ities denominated in foreign currencies are revalued at the exchange rate in effect at the time of the underlying 
transaction. 
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U) Stocl' plans 

Validus Holdings accounts for its stock plans in accordance with the ASC Topic 718 "Compensation - Stock 
Compensation." Accordingly, Valid us Holdings recognizes the compensation expense for stock option grants, restricted 
share grants and performance share awards based on the fair value of the award on the date of grant over the requisite 
service period, and allocates the expense to its subsidiaries, including the Company, based on the location of employees. 

For the years presented, the Company assumed a forfeiture rate of 5.0%. The Company's forfeiture assumptions 
serve to reduce the unam01tized grant date fair value of outstanding restricted shares as well as the associated restricted 
shares expense. As restricted shares are actua lly forfei ted, the number outstanding is reduced and the expenses relating 
to the unvested restricted shares are reversed. True-up adj ustments are made as the restricted shares approach the vesting 
period. 

0') Income taxes and uncertain tax provisions 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recorded in accordance with ASC Topic 740 "Income Taxes. " Consistent 
with ASC 740, the Company records deferred income taxes which reflect operating losses and tax credi ts carried forward 
and the tax effect of the temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
report ing purposes and their respective tax bases. 

The Company and its Bermuda domiciled subsidiaries are not subject to any income, withholding or capital gains 
taxes under current Bermuda law. The Company has operating subsidiaries in various other jurisdictions around the 
world, including but not limited to the U.S., Luxembourg, Switzerland and Canada that are subject to relevant taxes in 
those jurisdictions. 

The Company recognizes the tax benefits of uncertain tax positions only where the position is more likely than 
not to be sustained upon examinat ion by tax authorities based upon the technical merits of the position. Based on the 
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, we must presume that the tax position wi ll be subject to examination by a 
tax ing authority with full knowledge of all relevant information.lfthe recognition threshold is met, then the tax position 
is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settlement. 
The Company classifies all interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expenses. 

(I) Business combinations, goodwill and intangible assets 

The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with ASC Topic 805 "Business Combinations" 
and goodwill and intangible assets that ari se from business combinations in accordance with ASC Topic 350 "Intangibles 
- Goodwill and Othe1: " 

A purchase price paid that is in excess of the fair value of the net assets acqu ired ("goodwill") arising from a 
business combination is recorded as an asset, and is not amortized. Intangible assets with a fin ite life are amortized 
over the estimated useful life of the assets, whereas intangible assets with an indefinite usefu l life are not am011ized. 

Goodwill and intangible assets are assessed for impairment on an annual basis or more frequently if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that it is more likely than not that an impairment exists. Such events or circumstances 
may include an economic downturn in a geographic market or change in the assessment of fu ture operations. In 
perform ing this assessment, the Company may first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely 
than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount as a basis for determining whether it is 
necessary to perform the quantitative goodwill impairment test. Similarly, the Company may first assess qualitative 
factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that an other intangible asset is impaired as a basis for determining 
whether it is necessary to petform the quantitative impairment test. The factors assessed in making this determination 
included the overall insurance industry outlook, business strategy, premium rates, earnings sustainabi lity, market 
capitalization and the regulatoty and poli tical environment. 

If goodwill or intangible assets are impaired, they are written down to their fair value with a corresponding expense 
reflected in the Consolidated Statements oflncome and Comprehensive Income. 
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(m) Variable interest entities 

The Company determines whether it has relationships with entities defined as VIEs in accordance with ASC Topic 
810 "Consolidation." A VIE is consolidated by tbe variable interest holder that is determ ined to be the primary 
beneficiary. 

An entity in which the Company holds a variable interest is a VIE if any of the fo llowing conditions exist: (a) the 
total equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated 
fi nancial support, (b) as a group, the holders of equity investment at risk Jack either the direct or indirect abi lity through 
voting rights or similar rights to make decisions about an entity's activities that most significantly impact the entity's 
economic petformance or the obligation to absorb the expected losses or right to receive the expected residual retums, 
or (c) the voting rights of some investors are disprop011ionate to their obligation to absorb the expected losses of the 
entity, their rights to receive the expected residual returns of the entity, or both and substantially all of the entity 's 
activit ies either involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor with disproportionately few voting rights. 

The primary beneficiary is defined as the variable interest holder that is determined to have the controlling fi nancial 
interest as a result of having both (a) the power to direct the activities of a VIE that most significantly impact the 
economic petfonnance of the VIE and (b) the obligation to absorb losses or right to receive benefits from the VIE that 
could potentially be significant to the VIE. At inception of the VIE, as well as fo llowing an event that requires 
reassessment, the Company determines whether it is the primary beneficiary based on the facts and circumstances 
surrounding each entity. 

4. Recent accounting pronouncements 

(a) Accounting Sta ndat·ds Adopted in 201 7 

In May 201 5, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2015-09, "Financial Services - Insurance 
(J'opic 944)- Disclosures about Short-Duration Contracts. "The amendments in th is ASU enhance disclosures relating 
to reserves for losses and loss expenses by requiring the following: ( 1) net incurred and paid claims development 
information by accident year; (2) a reconci liation of incurred and paid claims development information to the aggregate 
canying amount of the reserve for losses and loss expenses; (3) for each accident year presented, total IBNR plus 
expected development on case reserves included in the reserve for losses and loss expenses, accompanied by a description 
of reserving methodologies and any changes thereto; (4) for each accident year presented, quantitative information 
about claim frequency (unless impracticable) accompanied by a qualitative description of methodologies used for 
determining claim frequency information and any changes thereto; and (5) the average annual percentage payout of 
incurred claims by age for the same number of accident years presented. The amendments in this ASU became effective 
for the Com pany on January I, 20 17 and the required disclosures have been included in Note 12, "Reserves.for Losses 
and Loss Expenses. " 

ln March 201 6, the FASB issued ASU 20 16-07, "Investments- Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323) -
Simpl(fying the 1hmsitionto the Equity Method of Accounting. " The amendments in thisASU el iminate the requirement 
to retroactively adopt the equity method of accounting when an investment becomes quali fied for the equity method 
of account ing as a result of an increase in the level of ownersh ip interest or degree of influence. The amendments in 
th is ASU became effective for the Company on January I, 20 17. Adoption of th is guidance did not have a material 
impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In March 20 16, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, "Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718) - Improvements 
to Employee Share-Based Payment Accounting." The amendments in this ASU simplify several aspects of the 
accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as 
either equity or liabilities and classification on the statement of cash flows. The amendments in this ASU are effective 
for annual periods beginning after December 15, 20 17, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after 
December 15,201 8. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. During the fi rst quat1er of 
201 7, the Company early adopted and implemented this guidance utilizing the full retrospective approach for all periods 
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presented in the Company's Consolidated Financia l Statements. Adoption of this guidance did not have a material 
impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements. 

In October 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016- 17, "Consolidation (Topic 81 0) -interests Held Through Related 
Parties That Are Under Common Control. "The amendments in this ASU do not change the characteristics of a primary 
beneficiary in current U.S. GAAP. Rather, the ASU requires that a rep01ting entity, in determining whether it satisfies 
the second characteristic of a primary beneficiary, include all of its direct variable interests in a VIE and, on a 
proportionate basis, its indirect variable interests in a VIE held through related patties, including related patties that 
are under common control with the reporting entity. The amendments in this ASU became effective for the Company 
on January I, 20 17. Adoption ofthis guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 320) -Restricted Cash. " 
This ASU is directed at reducing diversity that exists in the classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash 
on the statement of cash flows. The ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal periods beginning after December 15, 
20 18, and interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,2019. Early adoption is permitted, including 
adoption in an interim period. During the foUith quarter of 2017, the Company early adopted and implemented this 
guidance utilizing the full retrospective approach for all periods presented in the Company's Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

As a result of the adoption of ASU 20 16-18, the Company's Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows now explain 
the change during the period in the total of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash. Therefore, restricted cash is now 
included with cash and cash equivalents in the reconciliation the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts 
shown on the statement of cash flows. Prior to adoption, changes in restricted cash had been presented as a cash flow 
provided by (used in) investing activities. Consequently, the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended 
December 31, 2016 includes a revision to increase net cash used in investing activities by $15,000 . 

In August 20 17, the PASB issued ASU 2017-12, "Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815). " This ASU is directed 
at targeted improvements to accounting for hedging activities. This ASU is effective for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2019, and interim periods withi n fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is 
permitted, including adoption in an interim period. During the fourth qua1ter of2017, the Company early adopted and 
implemented this guidance with the effect of the adoption reflected as of January I, 2017 in these Consolidated Financial 
Statements. Adoption of this guidance did not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial 
Statements. 

(b) Recently Issued Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted 

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-08, "Receivables- Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 
31 0-20). " The amendments in this ASU shorten the amortization period for certain debt securities held at a premium. 
Specifically, the amendments require the premium to be amortized to the earliest call date. The amendments do not 
require an accounting change for securities held at a discount; the discount continues to be amortized to maturity. The 
amendments in this ASU are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 20 19, and interim periods within 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020. Early adoption is permitted, including adoption in an interim period. 
The Company has evaluated the impact of this guidance and it wi ll not have a material impact on the Company's 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company plans to early adopt this guidance on January 1, 2019. 

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, "Compensation- Stock Compensation (Topic 718). "This ASU is 
directed at reducing diversity in practice when applying the accounting guidance to a change in the terms or conditions 
of a share-based payment award. The ASU is effective for fiscal period beginning after December 15,20 17, and interim 
periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is pennitted, including adoption in an interim period. The Company 
has evaluated the impact ofthis guidance and it will not have a material impact on the Company's Consolidated Financial 
Statements, The Company plans to adopt this guidance on January I, 20 18. 
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In February 2018, the FASB issued ASU 20 18-02, "Income Statement- Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 
220). "Current GAAP requires that deferred tax liabilities and assets be adjusted for the effect of a change in tax laws 
or rates with the effect included in net income. This guidance is applicable even in situations in which the related income 
tax effects on items in accumulated other comprehensive income were originally recognized in other comprehensive 
income (rather than in net income). The amendments in this update allow a reclassification from accumulated other 
comprehens ive income to retained earnings for the tax effects of items within accumulated other comprehensive income 
(referred to as "stranded tax effects") resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act enacted by the U.S. on December 22, 
20 17 ("20 17 Tax Act"). Consequently, the ame ndments eliminate the stranded tax effects resulting from the 20 17 Tax 
Act. The amendments in this Update also require certain disclosures about stranded tax effects. This ASU is effective 
for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 20 18, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company has 
evaluated the impact of this guidance and has determined that it will not have a material impact on the Company's 
Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company intends to adopt this guidance on January I, 20 19. 

5. Business combinations 

American Jntemational Group, Inc. ("AIG'~ 

On January 2 1, 20 18, Validus Holdings entered into a definitive agreement and plan of merger with AlG. Refer 
to Note 23, "Subsequent Events, " for fmther details. 

CRS 

On May 1, 2017, Western World, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, acquired all of the outstanding 
capital stock ofCRS for an aggregate purchase price of$185,576 in cash. CRS is a prim my crop insurance MGA based 
in Decatur, Illino is with I , 170 agents across 36 states. CRS does not have insurance licenses of its own, but acts solely 
as an MGA in that it can produce business for any properly licensed enti ty on a commission basis. Concurrent with 
closing of the transaction, Stratford, a wholly-owned subs idiary of Western World, was granted the required licenses 
to write crop insurance in the United States and executed several agreements to transfer the related agriculture book 
of business to Stratford. 

The CRS acquisition was undet1aken to expand the Company 's presence in U.S. primaty specialty lines. 

On closing, the Com pany recorded intangible assets totaling $63,92 I for distribution channels, trade name and 
technology. Distribution channels and trade name were estimated to have finite useful economic lives often years on 
acquisition and are being amortized on a straight line basis over such period. Technology was estimated to have a finite 
useful economic life of two years on acquisition and is being amortized on a straight line basis over such a period. 

The purchase price was allocated to the acquired assets and liabilities of CRS based on estimated fa ir values on 
May I , 2017, the date the transaction closed, as detailed below. The Company recognized goodwill of$30,943 primarily 
attributable to CRS' assembled workforce and synergies expected to result upon the integration ofCRS and its related 
book of business into the Company's operations. The estimates of fair values for tangible assets acquired and I iabi I it ies 
assumed were determined by management based on various market and income analyses. The Company estimated the 
fair values of intangible assets acquired based on variations of the income and cost approaches. Significant judgment 
was required to arrive at these estimates of fair value and changes to assumptions used could have led to materially 
different results. 

The purchase of CRS was a taxable transaction and as such, goodwill and intangibles recorded at closing w ill be 
deductible for income tax purposes. The Company has recognized and recorded a deferred tax asset o f $6,443 which 
results from the excess of tax-deductible goodwill over book value goodwill as recognized in the purchase price 
allocation. 
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The fair value of net assets acquired, including GAAP adjustments, are summarized as follows: 

Total purchase price ..... .... .. .. .. ............ ........ ... ... ...... ... ... .... ...... ............. .... . $ 185,576 

Assets acquired 

Cash and cash equivalents ... ...... ...... .. .... .. ... .. .............. ...... ...... ................ .. $ 1,653 

Premiums receivable ....... .... ................ .. ..... ...... .. ...... .. ... ... .. ..... .... ..... .. .. ... . 537,383 

Prepaid reinsurance premiums ..... ......... .. .. .. ..... .... ..... ... .......... ... ....... .. .. ... . 227, 157 

Other assets ............... ..... .. .......... .... ....... .......... .. .... ... ....... ....... .. .... .......... . . _____ ..;.__ 184,2 16 

Tangible assets acquit·ed ..... ........ .... .. ... .................. .. ..... ......... ... ......... . .. . 950,409 

lntangible asset- Distribution channels .. .. ..... ... .... ... ................ ... .......... ... $ 52,898 

Intangible asset- Trade name ..... .......................... ... ... ... ..... ....... ... .... ...... .. 9,568 

Intangible asset- Technology .. ... .................. .............. .... .... .................... .. 1,455 _____ ..;.__ 

Intangible assets acquired .. ... ... ...... .......... ..... ........ ... ... ........... ............. .. . 63,921 

Deferred tax arising on Goodwi ll . .. .... .. .. ... .... .... ...... .... ... ...... .... ... .. ......... . . 6,443 

Liabilities acquired 

Reinsurance balances payable ... ............. ..... ...................... ..... .. .... .. ......... . 294,20 1 

Unearned premiums .. .... ............. .. .. .......... ........ ..... .. ... ... ... .... ....... .. .......... . 406,649 

Net loss reserves .. ... .. .. ... .... ... .... ....... .. ....... .. ...... ..... .. ....... .. ....... .......... .... .. . 42,575 

Other liabilities ... ......... .. .... .... ... .......... ......... ..... ... .. ..... ...... .. .. ... ..... ..... ... ... . 122,715 

Liabilities acquired ............. ....................... ..... .......... ... ... ..... .. ... ..... .. ...... . 866,140 

Excess purchase price (goodwill) at acquisition ................................. ... . $ 30,943 

Measurement period adjustments (a) . .. . . .. . . . .. . .. . .. ... . ........ .. ... . . .... .. . .. .. . .. ...... .. 1,872 

Excess purchase pl'ice (goodwill) at December 31, 2017 .... ................. .. $ 32,815 

(a) During the year ended December 31, 20 17, the Company recorded lax related measurement period adjustments of$L,872. 

The Company also incurred transaction expenses related to the CRS acquisition of $4,427. Transact ion expenses 
included legal, financial advisory and audit related services. 

For details on the intangible assets acquired, refer to Note 6, "Goodwill and intangible assets." 

Operating results of CRS have been included in the Con sol ida ted Financial Statements from the May I, 2017 
acquisition date. The following selected unaudited information has been provided to present a summary of the results 
of CRS that have been included in the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 3 1, 2017: 

Total underwriting revenues ... ...... ... ..... .... ...... .. ......... .... ... .. .. ... ... ... ..... .. .. ..... ..... ...... . .. .. ....... .. $ 

Totalundetwriting deductions .............. ... ..... .... .... .. .... ... ...... .... ... .. . .. ..... .. .. ... ... .... ... ....... .. ... ... $ 

Underwriting income, before genera l and administrative expenses .... ....... ... ...... .... .. ... ..... .. $ 

14 

Yea•· E uded December 31, 
201 7 

Uumulited 

236,769 

183,637 
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6. Goodwill and intangible assets 

The following table presents a reconci liation of the beginning and ending goodwill and intangible assets for the 
years ended December 31 , 20 I 7 and 20 16: 

Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Intangible Assets 
Goo1hvill With a Finite With an 

L ife Indefinite Life Total 

Balance, beginning of year .. .. . ... .................. ...... $ 176,365 $ 9,344 $ 12,325 $ 21,669 

Additions .......... .. ... .. . .. ... . .. . ....... .. .............. ....... 30,943 64,080 64,080 

Amortization ....... ................ .. .. . ... .. .... .... ... .. .... .. (6, 183) (6, I83) 

Measurement period adjustments ...... .. .. ......... . 1,872 

Balance, end ofyear ... .. ............... ....................... $ 209,180 $ 67,24 1 $ 12,325 $ 79,566 

Year Ended December 31 , 2016 

Intangible Assets 

Goodwill With a Finite With an 
Life Indefinite Life Total 

Balance, beginning of year .. ......... ........... .. .... .... $ 176,365 $ 10,849 $ 12,325 $ 23, 174 

Amortization ... ........ ... .............. ... .. ......... .... .. .... ( I ,505) ( 1 ,505) 

Balance, end of year ..... ............ .. .............. .. .. ... ... $ 176,365 $ 9,344 $ 12,325 $ 21,669 

Goodwill relates to the Company's 2014 acquisition of Western World and 2017 acquisition ofCRS. 

Intangible assets with a finite life includes the distribution network, technology, trade name and customer 
relationships related to the Company's acquis itions ofWestern World and CRS. These assets are amor1ized on a straight­
line basis over a period ranging from two to ten years. Amortization expense associated with these assets for the years 
ended December 31 , 20 I 7 and 20 16 were $6, 183 and $1,505, respectively. 

Intangible assets with an indefinite life consist of U.S. state licenses that provide a legal right to transact business 
indefinitely which were acquired with the Company's acquisition of Western World. 

The Company completed its qualitative and quantitative assessments of goodwil l and intangible assets and 
concluded that there had been no impairment as at December 31 , 2017 and 2016. 
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The gross carrying va lue, accumulated amortization and net canying value of intangible assets by type as at 
December 31,201 7 and 2016 were as fol lows: 

Decembe•·J l , 2017 December 31,2016 

Gross Gross 
Ca n ·ying Accumulated Net Carrying Canying Accum ula ted Net Ca•·rying 

Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value 

Intangible assets with a 
finite life 

Trade name and customer 
relationships ........ ... ...... ...... $ 2 1,320 $ (8,505) $ 12,815 $ 11 ,753 $ (7,291) $ 4,462 

Distribution network ............. 57,549 (5,038) 52,511 4,65 1 (1,047) 3,604 

Technology ...... ... ....... ............ 3,938 (2,023) 1,915 2,323 (1,045) 1,278 

Total .... ............................... $ 82,807 $ ( 15,566) $ 67,241 $ 18,727 $ (9,383) $ 9,344 

Intangible assets with an 
indefin ite life 

State licenses ... ...... .... ............ 12,325 n!a 12,325 12,325 n/a 12,325 

Total ...................... ............. $ 12,325 n/a $ 12,325 $ 12,325 n/a $ 12,325 

The estimated aggregate amortization expense for the Company's intangible assets with a finite life is as follows: 

Estimated remaining 
amortization expense 

2018 ..... ...... ...... .... .. ....... ............. .. .. ... .. ....... .. ... ........ ... ... ...... .... ...... ... ............ ....... ... ... ............... .. $ 8,512 

2019 .. ...... ......... .... ... ........... ..... .... .. .......................................................... ... ..... .......... ................ . 7,911 

2020 .............. .. ......... ..... .. .... .... ................ ... ............ .. .. .. .. .. ........ ........ ................................. ... .. .. .. 7,319 

202 1 ..... ...... ............. ... ...... ... .......... ........................................ ... ... ........ ... ... ... ............. ........... ... . .. 7,3 19 

2022 ...... .. .. ... .... .... ...... .... .. ... .... ... ... ............. ......................... ... .......... ............... .......... ..... .......... .. 7,306 

2023 and thereafter .... ... .............. ....... ............ .. ....... ......... ... ... .... ............. ... ... ........... .. .. ........ .... .. 28,874 

Total ............. ... ........... ......... ...... .... ............. ... ... ..................... ........ .... .... ..... ..... .................. ... .... .. 
======= 
$ 67,241 
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7. Investments 

The amortized cost (or cost) and fair value of the Company's investments as at December 31, 2017 and 20 l6 were 
as follows: 

DcccmbcrJI , 2017 ncccmbcr 31 , 2016 

Amortized Cost Amortized Cost 
or Cost Fair Value or Cost Fair Va lue 

U.S . government and government agency ........... ...... $ 563,480 $ 558,885 $ 567,215 $ 562,856 

Non-U.S. government and government agency ....... .. 154,909 153,635 119,515 118,744 

U.S. states, municipalities and political subdivisions 196,755 196,726 266,388 266,484 

Agency residential mortgage-backed securit ies ... .. .... 796,612 792,065 526,471 523,455 

Non-agency residential m01tgage-backed securities . 31 ,971 31 ,938 14,309 14,085 

U.S. corporate .. .......... .... ... .. ...... ... ... ... .... .. ... ..... .... ...... I ,325,028 I ,326,402 1,297,190 1,293,078 

Non-U.S. corporate ............. ... ... ... ... ... ......... ..... ... ....... 278,560 278,739 259,734 258,858 

Bank loans ... .. ............. .... ... .......... ............. ...... ..... ... .... 450,320 442,951 579, 121 570,399 

Asset-backed securities ...... .. ................. ......... ... .. ... ... . 608,622 609,118 491 ,987 490,638 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities ....... ...... .. .... 313,217 310,891 331,955 329,568 

Total fixed maturities .... ............... ...... ... .. ......... .. .. .... 4,719,474 4,70 1,350 4,453,885 4,428,165 

Short-term investments ........... .......... ......... ......... ... . 165,720 165,720 117,562 117,558 

Other investments 

Fund of hedge funds .. .. ............ ...... .. ........ ... ................ 1,457 955 

Hedge funds .. ............ .. ............... .. .. .. ............. ..... ... ..... 6,955 15,774 11 ,292 17,3 81 

Private equity investments ........................ .. .. .. ...... ..... 63,684 78 ,407 72,814 89,810 

Fixed income investment funds ...... .. ......... .............. .. 172,823 174,081 197,701 197,455 

Mutual funds ... ... .. .............. .. ...... .. .. ...... .. ........... ... .... .. 2,925 5,368 

Equities ... .. .............. .. .. ........ .......................... .. .. ... ...... 57,148 76,896 57,148 90,154 

Total othe•· investments .. .............. .. ..................... .. ... 300,610 345,158 343,337 401,123 

Investments in investment affiliates (n) .. .... .. .... .. ..... 61,944 100,1 37 84,840 100,431 

Total investments .. ....... .... .. ... ..................... ............... $ 5,247,748 $ 5,3 12,365 $ 4,999,624 $ 5,047,277 

(a) The Company's investments in investment affiliates have been treated as equity method investments with the corresponding gains and losses 
recorded in income as " Income (loss) from investment affiliates. " 
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(a) Fixed maturity investments 

The following table sets f01th certain information regarding Standard & Poor 's credit quality ratings (or an 
equivalent rating with another recognized rating agency) of the Company's fixed maturity investments as at 
December 31,2017 and 2016: 

December 31,2017 December 31,2016 

Fair Value %of Total Fai1· Value %of Total 

AAA ... .... .............. .. ........ ... ............... ... .......... ..... ...... $ 2, 181,720 46.4% $ I ,896,896 42.8% 

AA .... .. ..... .............. ................... ....... .................. ... ... . 325,034 6.9% 383,974 8.7% 

A .. ........... .. .......... .. ...... ......... ...... ............. ....... ... .. ...... 868,955 18.5% 804,459 18.2% 

888 .... ... ....... ..... .............. ............... ... ..... ....... ... ..... .. . 739,062 15.7% 642,740 14.5% 

Total investment-gt·ade fixed matul'ities .......... ... , 4,114,771 87.5% 3,728,069 84.2% 

88 ......... .... ... .. .... .... .. .............. .............. ..... .... ... .. .... ... 225,581 4.9% 268,705 6.1% 

8 .... .... ...... ... .................... .... .. ..... ............................... 237, 131 5.0% 177,737 4.0% 

CCC ........ ... ... .... ..... ....... ............ ..... ... ... ... ... ... .. .......... 18,217 0.4% 13,371 0.3% 

NR .................... ............ ..... ... ... ... ... ... ....................... . 105,650 2.2% 240,283 5.4% 

Total non-investment grade fixed matul'ities ...... . 586,579 12.5% 700,096 15 .8% 

Total fixed maturities ...................... ...... ........ .. .. .... . $ 4,701,350 100.0% $ 4,428,165 100.0% 

The amOttized cost and fair values for the Company's fixed maturity investments held at December 31, 2017 and 
2016 are shown below by contractual maturity. Actual maturity may differ from contractual maturity due to prepayment 
rights associated with certain investments. 

llecember 31,2017 December 31, 20 Hi 

Amortized Cost Fa ir Value Amortized Cost Fair Value 

Due in one year or less .. .................. .. .... .... .... ........ ... $ 252,423 $ 252,004 $ 246,428 $ 247,766 

Due after one year through five years ......... .. ........ ... 1,909,721 I ,894, 1 56 2,275,658 2,26 1,056 

Due after five years through ten years .... .. .. ............. 554,035 553,668 391 ,901 388,727 

Due after ten years ........ ...... .... .................... ........ .. .... 252,873 257,5 10 175, 176 172,870 

2,969,052 2,957,338 3,089, 163 3,070,419 

Asset-backed and mortgage-backed securities ...... ... I ,750,422 1,744,012 1,364,722 I ,357,746 

Total fixed maturities .......... ...... .. .. ............ .. .. .. ..... .. $ 4,719,474 $ 4,701,350 $ 4,453,885 $ 4,428,165 
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(b) Othe1· investments 

The following tables set fotth certain information regarding the Company's other investment portfolio as at 
December 31,2017 and 2016: 

Dcccmber31, 2017 

Investments Investments 
with without 

redemption redemption Uedemption Redemption 
Other investments Fair Value restrictions restrictions frequency <•> notice period <•> 

Hedge funds .... .... .... ... ... ............... ... 15,774 15,774 

Private equity investments .............. 78,407 78,407 

Fixed income investment funds ... ... 174,081 174,081 

Equities ...... .. .. ...... .. ............ ... . .......... 76,896 76,896 Daily Daily 

Total other investments ........... ...... $ 345,158 $ 268,262 $ 76,896 

December JJ , 2016 

Investments Investments 
with without 

redemption redemption l{edemption J{edemption 
Other investments Fair Value restrictions restrictions frequency <•> notice period <•l 

Fund of hedge funds ........... .... ......... $ 955 $ 955 $ 

Hedge funds ... ........... .. ....... .. .. ......... 17,381 17,381 

Private equity investments ......... .. ... 89,810 89,810 

Fixed income investment funds ..... . 197,455 197,455 

Mutual funds ..... . ............................. 5,368 5,368 Daily Daily 

Equities ........ . ......... .. ......... .............. . 90,154 90,154 Daily Daily 

Total other investments ................. $ 401 , 123 $ 305,601 $ 95,522 

(a) The redemption frequency and notice periods only apply to investments without redemption restrictions. 

Other investments include investments in shares of Validus Holdings held by the Company, as well as various 
funds and pooled investment schemes. These alternative investments employ various investment strategies primarily 
involving, but not limited to, investments in collateralized obligations, fixed income securities, private equities, 
distressed debt and equity securities. Certain debt-like investments totaling $ 130,123 (December 31, 2016: $184,749) 
are either rated or consist of underlying securities or instruments which cany credit ratings issued by nationally 
recognized statistical rating organizations. Other equity-like investments totaling $215,035 (December 31 , 2016: 
$216,374) are unrated given the nature of their underlying assets, such as private equity investments, and as such do 
not carry credit ratings. 

Certain securities included in other investments are subject to redemption restrictions. Distributions from these 
funds will be received as the underlying investments of the funds are liquidated. Currently, it is not known to the 
Company when these underlying assets will be sold by their investment managers; however, it is estimated that the 
majority of the underlying assets of the investments will I iquidate over five to len-year periods from inception of the 
funds. In addition, one of the fixed income investment funds with a fair value of $130,123 (December 31, 2016: 
$184,749}, has various lock-up periods ·of approximately two years or less as at December 31, 2017 and may also 
impose a redemption gate. A lock-up period refers to the initial amount oftime an investor is contractually required to 
remain invested before having the ability to redeem. Typically, the imposition of a gate delays a portion ofthe requested 
redemption, with the remaining portion settled in cash shortly after the redemption date. 
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The Company's maximum exposure to any of its other investments is limited to the invested amounts and any 
remaining capital commitments. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies, " for further details. As at 
December 31, 20 17, the Company does not have any plans to sell any of the other investments listed above. 

(c) Investments in investment affiliates 

Included in the Company's investment portfolio as at December 3 1, 2017 are investments in Aquiline Financial 
Services Fund Ll L.P. ("Aquiline II"), Aquiline Financial Services Fund Ill L.P. (" Aquiline III"), Aquiline Technology 
Growth Fund L.P. ("Aquiline Tech") and Aquiline Armour Co-Invest L.P. ("Aquiline Armour"). 

Aquiline II 

On December 20,20 II , the Company entered into an Assignment and Assumption Agreement (the "Agreement") 
with Aquiline Capital Partners LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the"Assignor") and Aquiline Capital Partners 
II GP (Offshore) Ltd., a Cayman Islands company limited by shares (the "Aqui line II General Partner") pursuant to 
which the Company has assumed I 00% of the Assignor's interest in Aquil ine Financial Services Fund II L.P. (the 
"Aquiline II Pa1tnership") represent ing a total capita l commitment of $50,000 (the "Aquiline II Commitment"), as a 
limited partner in the Partnership (the "Transferred Interest"). The Transferred Interest is governed by the terms of an 
Amended and Restated Exempted Limited Partnership Agreement of the Fund. 

On October 2, 2014, the Company assumed an additional investment in the Aquiline II Pminership as pa1t of the 
Western World acquisition representing a total capital commitment of $10,000 . This interest is also governed by the 
terms of the Aquiline 11 Limited Partnership Agreement. 

The Aquiline li Partnership is a VIE and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. The Company's investment 
in the Aquiline ll Partnership has been treated as an equity method investment. The Aqui line I I Partnership provides a 
qua1terly capital account statement, with a three month delay in its valuation, which was used as the basis for calculating 
the Company 's share of partnership income for the period. 

In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, no limited partner has the right to withdraw from the Aquiline II 
Partnership or to withdraw any part of its capital account without prior consent fi·om the Aqui line II General Partner. 
The Company's maximum exposure to the Aquiline 11 Partnership is limited to the amount invested and any remaining 
capital commitment. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies." for fwt her details. 

Aquiline Ill 

On November 7, 2014, the Company, entered into a Subscription Agreement (the "Subscription Agreement") with 
Aquiline Capital Partners lll GP (Offshore) Ltd., a Cayman Islands company limited by shares (the "Aqui line III General 
Partner") pursuant to which the Company committed and agreed to purchase limited partnership or other comparable 
limited liability equity interests (the "Limited Partnership Interests") in Aqui line Financial Services Fund Ilf L P., a 
Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership (the "Aquiline lil Partnership"), and/or one or more Alternative 
Investment Vehicles and Intermediate Entities (together with the Aquiline Ill Partnership, the "Fund" or the "Entities") 
with a capital commitment (the "Aquiline Ill Commitment") in an amount equal to $1 00,000, as a limited pa11ner in 
the Aquiline Ill Partnership. The Limited Par1nership Interests are governed by the terms of an Amended and Restated 
Exempted Limited Partnership Agreement. 

The Aquiline 111 Partnership is a VTE and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the Company's 
investment in the Aquiline Ill Partnership has been h·eated as an equity method investment. The Aqui line III Partnership 
provides a quarterly capital account statement, with a three month delay in its valuation, which was used as the basis 
for calculating the Company's share of partnersh ip income for the period. 

In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, no limited partner has the right to withdraw from the Aquiline III 
Partnership or to withdraw any part of its capital account without prior consent from the Aqu iline III General Partner. 
The Company's maximum exposure to the Aquil ine TIT Partnership is limited to the amount invested and any remaining 
capital commitment. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies, " for further details. 
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Aquiline Tech 

On March 20, 2017, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement with Aquiline Technology Growth GP 
Ltd, (the "Aquiline Tech General Partner") pursuant to which the Company committed and agreed to purchase limited 
partnership or other comparable limited liability equity interests (the "Limited Partnership Interests") in Aquiline Tech, 
a Cayman Islands exempted limited partnership (the "Aquiline Tech Partnership"), with a capital commitment in an 
amount equal to $20,000. The limited partnership interests are governed by the terms of an amended and restated 
exempted limited partnership agreement. 

The Aquiline Tech Partnership is a VI E and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the Company's 
investment in the Aquiline Tech Partnership has been treated as an equity method investment. The Aquiline Tech 
Partnership provides a quarterly capital account statement, with a three month delay in its valuat ion, which was used 
as the basis for calculating the Company's share of patinership income for the period. 

In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, no limited partner has the right to withdmw from the Aquiline 
Tech Patinership or to withdraw any patt of its capital account without prior consent from the Aquiline Tech General 
Partner. The Company's maximum exposure to the Aquiline Tech Patinership is limited to the amount invested and 
any remaining capital commitment. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies, ··for fUtther details. 

Aquiline Armour 

On December 22,20 17, the Company entered into a Subscription Agreement with Aquiline Co-Invest liT GP Ltd., 
a Cayman Islands exempted company (the "Aquiline Armour General Partner") pursuant to which the Company 
committed and agreed to purchase limited pattnership or other comparable limited liability equity interests in Aquiline 
Armour, a Cayman Islands exempted limited pmtnership (the "Aquiline Armour Partnership"), and/or one or more 
Alternative Investment Vehicles and Intermediate Entities (together with the Aquiline Armour Partnership, the "Fund" 
or the "Entities") with a capital commitment (the "Aquiline Armour Commitment") in an amount equal to $40,340 as 
a limited partner in the Aquiline Armour Partnership. As at December 31,201 7, no capital contributions had been made 
in relation to this commitment. The Limited Partnership Interests are govemed by the terms of an Amended and Restated 
Exempted Limited Partnership Agreement dated as of December 22, 2017. 

The Aquiline Armour Partnership is a VIE and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the 
Company's investment in the Aquiline Armour Pmtnership has been treated as an equity method investment. The 
Aquiline Armour Partnership provides a quarterly capital account statement, with a three month delay in its va luation, 
which was used as the basis for calculating the Company's share of partnership income for the period. 

In accordance with the terms of the Agreement, no limited partner has the right to wi thdraw from the Aquiline 
Ann our Pattnership or to withdraw any part of its capital account without prior consent from the Aquiline Armour 
General Partner. The Company's maximum exposure to the Aquiline Armour Partnership is limited to the amount 
invested and any remaining capital commitment. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies," for further 
details. 

The fo llowing table presents a reconci liation of the Company's beginning and ending investments in investment 
affiliates for the years ended December 3 1, 2017 and 20 16: 

Years Ended Decembc•·31 , 

2017 2016 

Investment affiliates, beginning of year ............................. ........................... $ 100,431 $ 87,673 
Net capital (distributions) contributions..................................................... (22,304) 14,841 

Income (loss) from investment affi liates...... ........................................... .. . 22,010 (2,083) 
...,-----;.__-

Investment affiliates, end ofyear .................................................................. $ 100,137 $ 100,43 1 
======== 
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The following tables present the Company's investments in the pat1nerships as at December 31 , 2017 and 
December 31, 2016: 

Investment 
at cost 

Aqui line 11 ................................................. ..... $ 33,349 

Aquiline 111 .. ...... .. ......... ..................... .. ........ .. . 24,737 

Aquiline Tech .......... .. ....... .. ........... .. .... .. ....... .. 3,858 
--- ---'---

61 ,944 Total investments in investment affiliates ...... $ 
========= 

lnveshnent 
at cost 

Aquiline Tl ............. .. ...... ........ .. .... ... .. .. ...... ... . .. $ 46,871 

Aquiline 111 .................... .... .. ..................... .. ... . 37,969 

Total investments in investment affiliates .... .. $ 84,840 
=========== 

(d) Net investment income 

December 31, 2017 

Voting Equity 
ownership % Ownership% 

- % 8.1% $ 

-% 9.0% 

- % 10.6% 

$ 

DecemberJI, 2016 

Voting Equity 
ownership% Ownership % 

- % 

- % 

8.1% $ 

9.0% 

$ 

Net investment income was derived from the following sources: 

Carrying 
Value 

51 ,914 

44,733 

3,490 

100,137 

Carryiug 
Value 

61,999 

38,432 

100,43 1 

YeArs Ended DecemberJI , 

2017 2016 

Fixed maturities and short-term investments ......................................... ...... .. .. . $ 112,898 $ I 03,674 

Other investments ..... ... ... ... ... ... ...... ... ....... ................ ..... .. ..... ...... ...... ................ . 27,630 26,595 

Cash and cash equivalents ....... .. ........ ................................................... .... ......... 2,433 2,548 

Dividends from equities...... .... .. .......... .. ... .. .. .................. ....... .. ...... .. .................. 2,491 2,294 

Securities lending income .. .... ....... .... ........... .. ................ ................................... 25 55 -------
Total gross investment income................... .. ........... ...... .... ................................ 145,477 135,166 

Investment expenses ... ....................... ......... ..... ....... ............... ... ... .... ................. (7,769) (7,334) 
-----------~-------~ 

Total net investment income .......... ......... .. ........ .. ... ......................................... $ 137,708 $ 127,832 
==="""'== 

Net investment income fi·om other investments includes distributed and undistributed net income from cet1ain 
fixed income investment funds. 

(e) Net •·ealized and change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 

The following represents an analysis of net rea lized and change in net unrealized gains (losses) on investments: 

Years Ended DecemberJI , 

2017 2016 

Gross realized gains ...... .. ..... ....... ...... .... .. ......... . .. .. ... .. .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ...... ....... $ 21,961 $ 12,549 

Gross realized (losses) .... .... ....... ...... ............ .... .. ... ... .... ....... ..... ...... .. .... ..... ... .. . .. (15,382) 
----'----'-

(6,634) 

Net realized gains on investments ........... ... ... ...... ........... ....... .... .. ... ...... .... .. .... . .. 6,579 5,915 

Change in net unrealized (losses) gains on investments ....... .. .......... .. .. .... .. .... .. (6,426) ___ ____;, _ ___;_ 28,382 

153 Total net realized and change in net unrealized gains on investments ...... . $ 
======== 

$ 34,297 
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(t) Pledged investments 

As at December31, 2017, the Company had $ 1,750,616 (December3 1, 2016: $1 ,532,919) of cash and cash 
equivalents, sh01t-term investments and fixed maturity investments that were pledged during the normal course of 
business. Of those, $1,734,975 were held in trust (December 31, 2016: $1 ,519,362). Pledged assets are generally for 
the benefit of the Company's cedants and policyholders and to faci litate the accreditation of the Company and its 
operating subsidiary, Validus Reinsurance (Switzerland) Ltd. ("Validus Re Swiss"), as a lien (re) insurers by cettain 
regulators. 

In addition, the Company has pledged cash and investments as collateral under the Company's credit facilities in 
the amount of $576,864 (December 3 1, 2016: $422,152). For futiher details on the credit faci lities, refer to Note 17 
"Debt and financing arrangements. " 

(g) Securities lending 

The Company participates in a securities lending program whereby certain securities from its potifolio are loaned 
to third parties for sh01t periods of time through a lend ing agent. The Company retains a ll economic interest in the 
securities it lends and receives a fee from the borrower fo r the temporary use of the securities. Collateral in the form 
of cash, government securities and letters of credit is required at a rate of 102% of the market value of the loaned 
securities and is held by a third patty. 

8. Fair value measurements 

(a) Classification within the fair value hierarchy 

Fair value is defined as the price to sell an asset or transfer a liab ility in an orderly transaction between market 
participants. Under U.S. GAAP, a company must determine the appropriate level in the fair value hierarchy for each 
fair value measurement. The fair va lue hierarchy prioritizes the inputs, which refer broadly to assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing an asset or liability, into three levels. It gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted 
prices in act ive markets for identical assets o r liabilities and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs. The level in the 
fair value hierarchy within which a fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level 
input that is s ignificant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. 

The three levels of the fair va lue hierarchy are described below: 

Level I - Fair values are measured based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 
liab il ities that we have the abili ty to access. 

Level 2- Fair values are measured based on quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or liabi lities, 
quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets, or for which s ignificant inputs are observable 
(e.g., interest rates, yield curves, prepayment speeds, default rates, loss severities, etc .) or can be corroborated 
by observable market data. 

Level 3 - Fair values are measured based on unobservable inputs that reflect the Company's own judgments 
about assumptions where there is little, if any, market activity for that asset or liab ility that market participants 
might use. 

The availabil ity of observable inputs can vaty from financial instrument to financia l instrument and is affected 
by a wide variety of factors including, for example, the type of financial instrument, whether the financial instrument 
is new and no t yet established in the marketplace, and other characteristics particular to the instrument. To the extent 
that va luation is based on models or inputs that are less obsetvable or unobservable in the market, the determination 
of fair va lue requires s ignificantly more judgment. 

Accordingly, the degree ofjudgment exercised by management in determining fa ir value is greatest for instruments 
categorized in Level3. In periods of market dis location, the observability of prices and inputs may be reduced for many 
instmments. This may lead the Company to change the selection of the valuation technique (for example, from market 
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to cash flow approach) or to use multiple va luation techniques to estimate the fair value of a financial instrument. These 
circumstances could cause an instrument to be reclassified between levels within the fair value hierarchy. 

At December 31, 20 17, the Company's investments were allocated between Levels I, 2 and 3 as fo llows: 

Fail' value 
b:tscd on NAV 

pl'actical 
Levell Levc12 LcvciJ expedient <•l Total 

U.S. government and government agency. $ $ 558,885 $ $ $ 558,885 

Non-U. S. government and government 
agency .......................... ...... ................ ... . 153,635 153,635 

U.S. states, municipalities and political 
subdivisions ................ ......... ... ... ... ......... 196,726 196,726 

Agency residential mortgage-backed 
securities ........ ..... ..................... ..... ......... 792,065 792,065 

Non-agency residential mortgage-backed 
securities ... ...... ... .................................... 31,938 3 1,938 

U.S. corporate .. ........................... .. ........... .. I ,326,402 I ,326,402 

Non-U.S. corporate .. ... ... ....................... ..... 278,739 278,739 

Bank loans ....................... .......................... 232,886 210,065 442,951 

Asset-backed securities ............................. 505,305 103,8 13 609, 118 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities .. 310,891 310,89 1 

Total fixed maturities .................. .......... .. 4,3 87,472 313,878 4,70 1,350 

Short-term investments ... ....... .... .. .......... . 134,562 31, 158 I 65,720 

Other investments 

Fund of hedge funds ...... .. ........ .................. 

Hedge funds .............. ......... .. .. .. ... .... ........... 15,774 15,774 

Private equity investments ......................... 78,407 78,407 

Fixed income investment funds ..... .... ... ..... 13,351 17,404 143,326 174,081 

Mutual funds ...... .. ............... .. .. .... .. .... ......... 

Equities ............ ........ ... ........ ... .... ... ... ... .. ..... 76,896 76,896 

Total other investments ... ........................ 76,896 13,351 17,404 237,507 345,158 

Investment in investment affiliates (bl .... 100,137 

Total investments ................ ..................... $ 2 11 ,458 $ 4,431,98 1 $ 33 1,282 $ 237,507 $ 5,312,365 

(a) In accordance with ASC Topic &20 "Fair Value Measuremeuls," investments measured at fair value using the net asset value ("NAY") JlCr 
share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. 

(b) In accordance with ASC Topic 825 "Fiuauciallmtmmeuts," the Company's investments in investment affiliates have not been classified in 
the fair value hierarchy. 
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At December 3 1, 20 16, the Company's investments were allocated between Levels I , 2 and 3 as follows: 

Level I 

U.S. government and government agency. $ 

Non-U.S. government and government 
agency ... ............... .. .......... ... .... ... ........... . . 

U.S . st~t~s~ municipalities and political 
SUbdiVISIOnS ... ........ ..... .... .. ...... ...... ... .... .. . 

Agency residential mortgage-backed 
securities ............. ...... ............. ........ .. ...... . 

Non-agency residentialmmigage-backed 
securities ...... ... ... .. ........ .. .. .... .. .. .. .. ....... ... . 

U.S. corporate .................... ....... ...... ........... . 

Non-U.S. corporate ............. ............ .......... . 

Bank loans .......................................... .. .... . . 

Asset-backed securities ............... .. ............ . 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities ... -----
Total fixed maturities ....................... ....... . 

Short-term investments ................... ........ . 105,040 

Other investments 

Fund of hedge funds ............... .... ............. .. . 

Hedge funds ............................ ....... ... .... ... . .. 

Private equity investments ........................ . 

Fixed income investment funds ................. . 

Mutual funds .......... .. ........... .. .... .. .............. . 

Equities ......................................... .......... .... 90,154 -----
Total other investments............................ 90, 154 

Investment in investment affiliates (nJ .... . 

Lcvc12 

$ 562,856 $ 

118,744 

266,484 

523,455 

14,085 

1,293,078 

258,858 

323,903 

466,707 

329,568 

4,157,738 

12,518 

5,368 

5,368 

Lcvcl3 

246,496 

23,931 

270,427 

12,168 

12,168 

Fail' value 
bnsed on NAV 

practical 
expedient <•) 

$ 

955 

17,3 81 

89,8 10 

185,287 

293,433 

Total 

$ 562,856 

118,744 

266,484 

523,455 

14,085 

1,293,078 

258,858 

570,399 

490,638 

329,568 

4,428,165 

117,558 

955 

17,381 

89,810 

197,455 

5,368 

90,154 

401,123 

100,431 

Total investments ...... .............. .................. $ 195, 194 $ 4,175,624 $ 282,595 $ 293,433 $ 5,047,277 

(a) In accordance with ASC Topic 820 "Pair Value Mea.wrements." investmenls measured at lair value using the net asscl value ("NAV") per 
share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been classified in the fair value hierarchy. 

(b) In accordance with ASC Topic 825 "Financial /nslmmeu/s, " lhc Company 's investments in investment affiliates have nol been classified in 
the fair value hierarchy. 

At December 31 ,2017, Level3 investments totaled $33 1,282 (December 31, 20 16: $282,595), representing 6.2% 
(December 31 , 2016: 5.6%) oftotal investments. 
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(b) Valuation techniques 

There have been no material changes in the Company's valuation techniques during the period, or· pe riods, 
represented by these Consolidated Financial Statements. The following methods and assumptions were used in 
estimating the fair value of each class of financial instrument recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 

Fixed maturity investments 

In general, valuation of the Company's fixed maturity investment portfolio is provided by pricing services, such 
as index providers and pricing vendors, as well as broker quotations. The pricing vendors provide valuat ions for a high 
volume ofl iquid securities that are actively traded. Por securities that do not trade on an exchange, the pricing services 
genera lly utilize market data and other observable inputs in matrix pricing models to determine month end prices. Prices 
are generally verified using third party data. Index providers generally utilize centralized trade reporting networks, 
avai lable market makers and statistical techniques. 

In general, broker-dealers value securities through their trading desks based on observable inputs. The 
methodologies include mapping securities based on trade data, bids or offers, observed spreads, and performance on 
newly issued securities. Broker-dealers also determine va luations by observing secondary trad ing o f s imi lar securities. 
Prices obtained from broker quotations are considered non-binding, however they are based on observable inputs and 
by observi ng secondary trading of similar securities obtained from active, non-distressed markets. The Company 
considers these Level 2 inputs as they are corroborated with other market observable inputs. The techniques generally 
used to determine the fair value of the Company's fixed maturity investments are detailed be low by asset class. 

U.S. govemment and government agency 

U.S. government and govemment agency securities consist primarily of debt securities issued by the U.S. Treasury 
and mortgage pass-through agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association, the Federal !-lome Loan 
Mortgage Corporation and the Government National Mortgage Association. Fixed maturity investments included in 
U.S. government and government agency securities are primari ly priced by pricing services. When evaluating these 
securities, the pricing services gather information from market sources and integrate other observations from markets 
and sector news. Evaluations are updated by obtaining broker dea ler quotes and other market information inc luding 
actual trade volumes, when available. The fa ir va lue of each security is individually computed using analytical models 
which incorporate option adjusted spreads and other daily interest rate data . As the significant inputs used to price these 
securities are observable, the fair value of these investments are class ified as Level 2. 

Non-U.S government and government agency 

Non-U.S. government and government agency securities consist of debt securities issued by non-U.S. governments 
and their agencies along with supranational organizations (also known as sovereign debt securities). Securi ties held in 
these sectors are primarily priced by pricing services who employ proprietary discounted cash flow models to va lue 
the securities. Key quantitative inputs for these models are daily observed benchmark curves for treasury, swap and 
high issuance credits. The pricing services then apply a credit spread for each security which is developed by in-depth 
and real time market analysis. For securities in which trade volume is low, the pricing services utili ze data from more 
frequently traded securities with similar att ri butes. These models may also be supplemented by dai ly market and credit 
research for international markets. As the signi ficant inputs used to price these securities are observable, the fair value 
of these investments are classified as Level 2. 

U.S states. municipalities and political subdivisions 

The Company's U.S. states, municipa lities and political subdivisions portfolio contains debt securities issued by 
U.S. domiciled state and municipal entities. These securities are generally priced by independent pricing services using 
the techniques described for U.S. government and government agency securities described above. As the significant 
inputs used to price these securities are observable, the fa ir value of these investments are classified as Level 2. 
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Agencv residential mortgage-backed securities 

The Company's agency residential mortgage-backed investments are primarily priced by pricing services using 
a mortgage pool specific model which utilizes daily inputs from the active to be announced market which is very liquid, 
as well as the U.S. treasury market. The model also utilizes additional information, such as the weighted average 
maturity, weighted average coupon and othe r available pool level data which is provided by the sponsoring agency. 
Valuations are a lso corroborated with daily active market quotes. As the significant inputs used to price these securities 
are observable, the fair value of these investments are classified as Level 2. 

Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 

The Company's non-agency mortgage-backed investments include non-agency prime residential mot1gage­
backed fixed maturity investments. The Company has no fixed maturity investments c lassified as sub-prime held in its 
fi xed maturity investments portfolio. Securities held in these sectors are primarily priced by pric ing services using an 
option adjusted spread model or other relevant models, which principally utilize inputs including benchmark yie lds, 
available trade information or broker quotes, and issuer spreads. The pricing services also review collateral prepayment 
speeds, loss severity and delinquencies among other collateral performance indicators for the securities valuation, when 
applicable. As the signi ficant inputs used to price these securities are obsetvable, the fair value of these investments 
are classified as Level 2. 

U.S. corvorate 

U.S. corporate debt securities consist primarily of investment-grade debt of a wide variety of U.S. corporate 
issuers and industries. The Company's corporate fixed maturity investments are primarily priced by pricing services. 
When evaluating these securities, the pricing services gather information from market sources regarding the issuer of 
the security and obtain credit data, as well as other observations, from markets and sector news. Evaluations are updated 
by obtaining broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, when available. The 
pricing services also consider the specific terms and conditions of the securities, including any specific features which 
may influence risk. In certain instances, securities are individually evaluated using a spread which is added to the U.S. 
treasury cutve or a security specific swap curve as appropriate. As the s ignificant inputs used to price these securities 
are observable, the fair value of these investments are classified as Leve12. 

Non-US. corpomte 

Non-U.S. corporate debt securities consist primarily of investment-grade debt of a wide variety of non-U.S. 
corporate issuers and industries. The Company's non-U.S. corporate fixed maturity investments are primarily priced 
by pricing services. When evaluating these securities, the pricing services gather information from market sources 
regarding the issuer of the security and obtain credit data, as well as other obsetvations, from markets and sector news. 
Evaluations are updated by obtai ning broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, 
when avai lable. The pricing serv ices also consider the specific terms and conditions of the securities, including any 
specific features which may influence risk. As the significant inputs used to price these securities are observable, the 
fair value of these investments are classified as Level 2. 

Bank loans 

The Company's bank loan investments consist primarily of below-investment-grade debt of a wide variety of 
corporate issuers and industries. The Company's bank loans are primarily priced by pricing services. When evaluating 
these securities, the pricing services gather info rmation from market sources regarding the issuer of the security and 
obtain credit data, as well as other observations, from markets and sector news . Evaluations are updated by obtain ing 
broker dealer quotes and other market information including actual trade volumes, when avai lable. The pricing services 
a lso consider the specific terms and conditions of the securities, including any specific features which may influence 
risk. As the significant inputs used to price these securities are observable, the fair value of these investments are 
classified as Level 2. 

Also, included in the bank loan portfolio is a collection of loan participations held through an intermediary. A 
third party pricing service provides monthly valuation reports for each loan and participation using a combination of 
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quotations from loan pricing services, leveraged loan indices or market price quotes obtained directly from the 
intermediary. Significant unobservable inputs used to price these securities include credit spreads and defau lt rates; 
therefore, the fair value of these investments are classified as Level 3. 

Asset-backed securities 

Asset backed securities include mostly investment-grade debt securities backed by pools of loans with a variety 
of underlying collateral, including automobile loan receivables, student loans, credit card receivables, and collateralized 
loan obligations originated by a variety of financial institutions. Securities held in these sectors are primarily priced by 
pricing services. The pricing services apply dealer quotes and other avai I able trade information such as bids and offers, 
prepayment speeds which may be adjusted for the underlying collateral o r current price data, the U.S. treasury curve 
and swap curve as well as cash settlement. The pricing services determine the expected cash flows for each security 
held in this sector us ing historical prepayment and default projections for the underlying collateral and cun ent market 
data. In addition, a spread is applied to the relevant benchmark and used to discoun t the cash flows noted above to 
determine the fa ir value of the securities held in this sector. As the significant inputs used to price these securities are 
observable, the fa ir value of these investments are c lassified as Level 2. Where pricing is unavailable from pricing 
services, we o btain non-binding quotes from broker-dealers. This is generally the case when there is a low volume of 
trading activity and current transactions are not orderly. Broker-dealer quotes for which s ignificant observable inputs 
are unable to be corroborated with market observable information are c lassified as Level 3. 

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 

Commercia l mortgage backed securities are investment-grade debt primarily priced by pricing services. The 
pricing services apply dealer quotes and other ava ilable trade informat ion such as bids and offers, prepayment speeds 
which may be adjusted for the underlying collateral or current price data, the U.S. treasury curve and swap curve as 
well as cash settlement. The pricing services determine the expected cash flows for each security he ld in this sector 
using historical prepayment and default projections for the underlying collateral and current market data. In addition, 
a spread is applied to the relevant benchmark a nd used to discount the cash flows noted above to determine the fair 
value of the securities he ld in this sector. As the significant inputs used to price these securities are observable, the fair 
value of these investments are c lassified as Level2. 

Short term inveslmeuls 

Short-term investments consist primarily ofhighly liquid securities, all with maturities of less than one year from 
the date of purchase. The fair va lue of the pottfolio is generally determined using am011ized cost which approximates 
fair value. As the highly liquid money market-type funds are actively traded, the fair value of these investments are 
classified as Level 1. To the extent that the remaining securities are not actively traded due to their approaching maturity, 
the fai r value of these investments are classifi ed as Level 2. 

Other investments 

Fund o(hedge funds 

During the year ended December 3 1, 2017, the Company's investment in a fund of hedge funds was liquidated. 
Pri01·to liquidation, the fund 's administrator provided a monthly reported NAY with a three month delay in its valuation. 
The fund manager provided an estimate of the fund NAY at year end based on the estimated performance provided 
from the underlying funds. To determine the reasonableness of the estimated NAY, the Company compared the fund 
administrator's NAY to the fund manager's estimated NAY that incorporates relevant valuation sources. Prior to 
liquidation, the fair value of these investme nts were measured using the NAY practical expedient and therefore were 
not categorized within the fair va lue hierarchy. 

Hedge funds 

The hedge fund's administrator provides quatterly NAYs with a three month delay in valuation. The fa ir value 
of this investment is measured using the NAY practical expedient and therefore has not been categorized with in the 
fair value hierarchy. 
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Private equitJ! investments 

The private equity funds provide quarterly or semi-annual partnership capital statements with a three or six month 
delay which are used as a basis for valuation. These private equity investments vary in investment strategies and are 
not actively traded in any open markets. The fai r value of these investments are measured using the NAY practical 
expedient and therefore have not been categorized within the fair value hierarchy. 

Fixed income investment fund~ 

The Company's investment funds classified as Level2 consist of a pooled investment fund. The pooled investment 
is invested in fixed income securities with high credit ratings and is only open to Lloyd's Trust Fund pat1icipants. The 
fair value of units in the investment fund is based on the NAY of the fund and is traded on a dai ly basis. 

Included in investment funds is a residual equity tranche of a structured credit fund valued using a dynamic yield 
that calculates an income accrual based on an underlying valuation model with a typical cash flow waterfall 
structure. Significant unobservable inputs used to price this fund include default rates and prepayment rates; therefore, 
the fair value of the investment fund is classified as Level 3. 

The fair value of the Company's remaining investment funds is based on the NAY of the fund as reported by the 
independent fund administrator. The fund 's administrators provide a monthly reported NAY with a one or three month 
delay in their valuation. The fair value of these investments are measured using the NAY practical expedient and 
therefore have not been categorized within the fair value hierarchy. None of these investments are probable of being 
sold at amounts different than their NAYs. 

Mutual funds 

During the year ended December 31, 201 7, the Company 's investment in a mutual fund was liquidated. Prior to 
liquidation, the mutual fund consisted of an investment fund which invested in various quoted investments. The fair 
value of units in the mutual fund was based on the NAY of the fund as reported by the fund manager. The mutual fund 
had daily liquidity which allowed us to redeem our holdings at the applicable NAY in the near term. As such, the 
Company had classified this investment as Level 2. 

Equities 

Equities represent shares ofYalidus Holdings held by the Company. The fair value of these shares are determined 
based on quoted market prices on the New York Stock Exchange and therefore have been classified as Level I at 
December 3 t, 20 17. 

(c) Level3 investments 

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances for all investments measured 
at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 3 inputs during the years ended December 31, 20 17 and 2016: 

Yea•· Ended December 31, 2017 

Fixed Income 
Investment Asset Backed 

Banl1 Loans Funds Securities Total 

Level 3 investments, beginning of year ......... $ 246,496 $ 12,168 $ 23,93 1 $ 282,595 

Purchases ...................................................... 84,354 5,236 78,997 168,587 

Sales ............................................................. ( 195) ( 195) 

Settlements ................................................... ( 11 8,260) ( 118,260) 

Change in net unrealized (losses) gains ....... (2,525) 1,080 (1,445) 

Level 3 investments, end of year ............. ....... $ 210,065 $ 17,404 $ 103,813 $ 33 1,282 

29 



Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated F inancial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts) 

Year Ended December 31,2016 

Fixed Income 
Investment Asset Bacl<cd 

Bani< Loans Funds Securities 

Level 3 investments, beginning of year ......... $ 232,337 $ $ $ 

Purchases .. .. .. ................................................ 87,345 12,168 23,896 

Sales ......................... .................................... (2,389) 

Settlements ........................ .. ......................... (69,496) 

Change in net unrealized (losses) gains ....... (1,30 I) 35 

Level 3 investments, end of year. ................... $ 246,496 $ 12,168 $ 23,931 $ 

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the years ended December 31, 2017 or 20 16. 

(d) Financial instruments not carried at fair value 

Total 

232,337 

123,409 

(2,389) 

(69,496) 

(I ,266) 

282,595 

ASC Topic 825 "Financial instruments " is also appl icable to disclosures of fina ncial instruments not carried at 
fair value, except for cettain financial instruments, including insurance contracts and investments in affiliates. The 
carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accrued investment income, other assets, receivable for 
investments sold, balances due to/from affi liates, net payable for investments purchased and accounts payable and 
accrued expenses approximated their fair values at December 31, 2017, due to their respective short maturities. As 
these financial instruments are not actively traded, their respective fair values are classified with in Level 2. 

9. Investments in operating affiliates and structured notes receivable from AlphaCat ILS fund 

(a) Investments in operating affiliates 

AlphaCat sidecars 

Beginning on May 25, 201 1, the Company joined with other investors in capitalizing a series of reinsurance and 
investment entities, referred to as "sidecars," for the purpose of investing in collateralized reinsurance and retrocessional 
contracts. Certain of these sidecars deployed their capital through transactions entered into by AlphaCat Reinsurance 
Ltd. ("AlphaCat Re"). Each of these entities returns capital once the risk period expires and all losses have been paid 
out. The AlphaCat sidecars are VIEs and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the Company's 
investments in the sidecars have been treated as equity method investments. The Company's maximum exposure to 
any of the sidecars is the amount of capital invested at any given time and any remaining capital commitments. Refer 
to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies," for further details. 

AlphaCat!LSjimds 

Beginning on December 17,201 2, the Company joined with other investors in capitalizing the AlphaCat fLS funds 
for the purpose of investing in instruments wi th returns linked to property catastrophe reinsurance, retrocession and 
insurance linked securities ("TLS") contracts. The AlphaCat ILS funds have varying risk profiles and are categorized 
by the maximum permitted pot1folio expected loss of the fund. The maximum permitted portfolio expected loss 
represents the average annual loss over the set of simulation scenarios divided by the total limit. Lower risk ILS funds 
are defined as having a maximum permitted portfolio expected loss of less than 7%, whereas higher risk ILS funds 
have a maximum permitted portfolio expected loss of 7% or greater. The AlphaCat ILS funds primarily deploy their 
capital through transactions entered into by AlphaCat Re and AlphaCat Master Fund Ltd. The AlphaCat ILS funds are 
VIEs and the Company is not the primary beneficiary. Therefore, the Company's investments in the funds have been 
treated as equity method investments. 

The Company's maximum exposure to any of the Alpha Cat lLS funds is the amount of capital invested at any 
given time and any remaining capital commitments. Refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies," for further 
details. 
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BetaCat ILS.fimds 

The BetaCat ILS funds follow a passive buy-and-hold investment strategy, investing exclusively in catastrophe 
bonds (principal-at-risk variable rate notes and other event-linked securities, refened to collectively as "Cat Bonds") 
focused on propetiy and casualty risks and issued under Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. One of 
the funds is a VIE and the Company is not the primaty beneficiaty. Therefore, the Company's investment in this fund 
has been treated as equity method investment. The remaining fund is a VOE and is consolidated by the Company as it 
owns all of the voting equity interests. The Company's max imum exposure to any of of the BetaCat ILS funds is the 
amount of capital invested at any given time. 

PaCRe, Ltd. 

On April 2, 2012, the Company jo ined with other investors in capitalizing PaCRe, Ltd . ("PaCRe"), a Class 4 
Bermuda reinsurer formed for the purpose of writing high excess property catastrophe reinsurance. During 20 15, 
PaCRe's Class 4 license was surrendered and it was considered off-risk effective January I , 2016. During 2016, PaCRe 
was liquidated. The Company's investment in PaCRe was treated as an equity method investment. 

The following tables present a reconciliation of the beginning and ending investments in operating affiliates for 
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Year Ended Occcmber 31, 2017 

AlphaCat ILS AlphaCat ILS 
AlphaCat Funds- Lower Funds- Higher BctaCat ILS 
sidecars Risl< Risl< Fund Total 

Balance, beginning of year ........ ....... $ 9,111 $ 180,782 $ 67,872 $ 51,772 $ 309,537 

Purchase of shares .............. .. ........ .. 15,000 15,000 

Redemption of shares I 
Distributions ........... ......... .. ............ . (2,943) (I 04,897) (18,416) (27,430) ( 153,686) 

Income (loss) from operating 
affi I iates ..... ......... ......... ......... .......... 79 (3,102) (23,303) 536 (25,790) 

Balance, end ofyear ................ ....... .. $ 6,247 $ 72,783 $ 41,153 $ 24,878 $ 145,061 

Year Ended OecembcrJI, 2016 

AlphaCat AlphaCat 
AlphaC at ILS Funds- lLS Funds- BctaCatJLS 
side cal's Lower' Risl< Highet· l{isl< Fund PaCRc Total 

Balance, beginn ing of year .............. .. $ 37,116 $ 151 ,881 $ 73,008 $ 61,749 $ 392 $ 324,146 

Purchase of shares ... .. ....... ......... .... .. 20,000 16, 136 36,136 

Redemption of shares I 
Distributions ...... . .. . ..... ..... ... ... ......... (28,612) (28,1 28) (13,600) (369) (70,709) 

Income (loss) from operating 
affiliates ......... .. .... ........... ...... ....... 607 8,901 6,856 3,623 (23) 19,964 

Balance, end of year .. .. ... ... .. ..... .. .. ..... $ 9, 111 $ 180,782 $ 67,872 $ 51 ,772 $ $ 309,537 
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The following table presents the Company's investments in operating affi liates as at December 31, 2017: 

Cost 
Voting 

ownership% 
Equity 

ownership% 
CHrrying 

\'aluc 

AlphaCat sidecars .......... . ...... ...... ............................ ... ....... $ 5,367 (a) (b) $ 6,247 

AlphaCat JLS Funds- Lower Risk .......... ............ ..... ........ 52,565 n/a (c) 72,783 

AlphaCat lLS Funds- Higher Risk ........ ........ ..... ... .......... 40,453 n/a (d) 41 , 153 

BetaCat TLS Funds .......... . ................................... ..... ........ 2 1,686 100.0% 100.0% 24,878 

Total .... ... ... ... .... ... .. ........................... ... ... ........................... $ 120,071 $ 145,061 

(a) Voting ownership in the AlplmCat sidecars was 43.7%, 49.0%, 40.9%, 42.3% and 40.0% as at December 3 1, 20 17. 

(b) Equity ownership in the AlphaCat sidecars was 22.3%, 37.9%, 19.7%, 19.6% and 20.0% as at December 3 1, 2017. 

(c) Equity ownership in the lower risk AlphaCat ILS funds was 7.4% and 9.5% as at December 3 I , 20 I 7. 

(d) Equity ownership in the higher risk AlphaCatiLS funds was 10.0% and 5.8% as at December 3 I, 2017. 

The following table presents the Company 's investments in operating affiliates as at December 31, 20 16: 

Voting EqnilJ CatTyiug 
Cost OWIICI'Ship% ownership% \'alue 

AlphaCat s idecars .......... ..... .......... .. .......... ........................ $ 8,3 15 (a) (b) $ 9,111 

AlphaCat ILS Funds- Lower Risk ... .. .. ........ ..... ... .. ... ....... 132,320 n/a (c) 180,782 

AlphaCat ILS Punds- Higher Risk .. ... .... .. .. .. ............ .. .. ... 45,956 n/a (d) 67,872 

BetaCat Funds ....................... ........ .......... ................ ........ . 46,390 100.0% 100.0% 51,772 

Total .. ................ ... .... .......... ... ... ... ... .................... ............. .. $ 232,981 $ 309,537 

(a) Voting ownership in the Alpha Cat sidecars was 43.7%, 49.0%, 40.9%, 42.3% and 40.0% as at December 3 I , 2016. 

(b) Equity ownership in the AlphaCat sidecars was 22.3%, 37.9%, 19.7%, 19.6% and 20.0% as at December 31 , 20 16. 

(c) Equity ownership in the lower risk AlphaCat ILS funds was 7.6%, 18.4% and 9.1% as at December 31, 20 16. 

(d) Equity owners hip in the higher risk AlphaCat ILS funds was 14.3% and 8.6% as at December 31 , 2016. 

(b) Structured notes receivable from AlphaCat JLS fund 

During 20 17 and 20 16, one of the AlphaCat JLS funds ("the Fund") issued both common shares and structured 
notes to the Company in order to capitalize the Fund. The structured notes do not have a stated maturity date since 
repayment is dependent on the settlement and income or loss of the underlying transactions. The structured notes rank 
senior to the common shares of the Fund and earn an interest rate of 7.0% (20 16: 8.0%) per annum, payable on a 
cumulative basis in arrears. 

The following tables present a reconci liation of the beginning and ending structured notes receivable from the 
Fund as at December 31, 2017 and December 3 1, 2016: 

Yea.-s l!:ndcd Decem be.- 31, 

2017 2016 

Structured notes receivable from the Fund, beginning of year .... .. ............... .... .. .. .. $ $ 

Issuance of structured notes receivable ................ ...... ..................... ..... ...... ....... .. . 10,000 8,865 

Redemptions of structured notes receivable .......... .. ... .. . .... ..... . .. . ... .... .. .. .... .. ... ..... . (8,865) 

Structured notes receivable from the Fund, end of year ...... ... ......... ...... ................. =========:====== $ 10,000 $ 

The income from the structured notes for the year ended December 31, 2017 was $64 1 (20 16: $615). 
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10. Derivative instt"Uments 

(a) Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments 

The following tables summarize information on the classification and amount of the fair value of derivatives not 
designated as hedging instruments within the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2017 and 
201 6: 

December 31, 201 7 December 31, 2016 

Derivntivcs not 
designated as Liability Liability 
hedging Notional Asset lleriva five Derivative at Notiona l Asset Derivative Deriva tive at 
inst ruments: Exposure at Fair Value (a) Fa ir Value Ca) Exposu re at Fnii-V:.Ine <•l F11ir Value Cal 

r orcign currency 
forward contracts . $ 164,283 $ 1, 147 $ 803 $ 138,408 $ 430 $ 3,366 

(a) Asset and liability derivatives are classified within other assets and accounts payable and accrued expenses, respectively, on the Consolidated 
llalance Sheets. 

The foreign currency forward contracts are va lued on the basis of standard industry valuation models. The inputs 
to these models are based on observable market inputs, and as such the fai r values of these contracts are classified as 
Level 2. 

The fo llowing table summarizes information on the classification and net impact on earnings, recognized in the 
Company's Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income relating to derivatives that were not 
designated as hedging instruments during the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Derivatives not designated as hedging Classification of gains (losses) recogni:t.ed in 
Years Rnded Dccember J I, 

instruments ea rnings 
----~-------------------------

Foreign currency forward contracts ............. foreign exchange losses 

Foreign currency fo rward contracts ........ .... . Other insurance related income and other income 

Interest rate swap contracts <•l ...................... Net realized gains on investments 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2017 

(5,232) $ 

(979) $ 

$ 

2016 

(3,986) 

142 

498 

(a) Relates to net realized gains on two interest rate swap contracts which were entered into and terminated during the year ended December 31, 
2016 to partially onset the impact of interest rate increases on the Company's fixed maturity investment portfolio. 

(b) Derivatives designated as cash flow hedges 

During 201 7 the Company designated cettain foreign exchange contracts as cash flow hedges of anticipated foreign 
currency-denominated sales or purchases. 

The following table summarizes information on the classification and amount of the fair value of derivatives 
des ignated as hedging instruments on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 3 I, 20 17: 

Derivatives designa ted ns hedging insft·uments 

Foreign currency forward contracts............................................................................. $ 

Notiona l 
EXJlOsure 

Deccmber 3 1, 20 17 

Asset Der iva tive 
at Fair Value M 

96,293 $ 1,890 $ 

(a) Asset and liability derivatives are classified within funds withheld on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. 
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The fore ign currency forward contracts are valued on the basis of Level 2 inputs. 

The following table summarizes information on the classification and net impact on earnings, recognized in the 
Company 's Consolidated Statements offncome and Comprehensive Income relating to derivatives that were designated 
as hedging instruments during the years ended December 3 1, 2017: 

Vcnr Ended December 31, 

Foreign currency for·wnrd conlrHcls 

Amount of effective portion recognized in other comprehensive income...................................................... $ 

Amount of effect ive portion reclassified to other insurance related income and other income ..................... $ 

(c) Balance sheet offsetting 

There was no balance sheet offsetting activity as at December 31 , 2017 or 2016. 

2017 

1,890 

The Company does not provide collateral or financial instruments as security for foreign currency fotward contracts. 
Our derivative instruments are generally traded under International Swaps and Derivatives Association master 
agreements, which establish terms that apply to all transactions. On a periodic basis, the amounts receivable from or 
payable to the counterparties are settled in cash. 

The Company has not elected to set1le mul tiple transactions with an individua l counterparty on a net basis. 

11. Premiums receivable and funds withheld 

(a) Premiums receivable 

Premiums receivable are composed of premiums in the course of collection, net of commissions and brokerage, 
and premiums accrued but unbilled, net of commissions and brokerage. It is common practice in the (re)insurance 
industry for premiums to be paid on an installment bas is, therefore significant amounts will be considered unbilled and 
will not become due until a future date, which is typica lly no later than expiration of the underlying coverage period. 
The fo llowing is a breakdown of the components of premiums receivable as at December 31, 20 17 and 20 16: 

Premiums receivable, beginning of year .... ..... .... ........... 

Change during year ........ ......... ..................... .. , ............. 

Premiums receivable, end of year ..... .. ....... ........ .. ...... .... 

Year Ended December 31,20 17 

Premiums in course 
of collection 

$ 74,881 

126,370 

$ 201 ,25 1 

Premiums accrued 
hut unbilled 

$ 377,6 16 

75,692 

$ 453,308 

$ 

$ 

Year· Ended December 31, 20 16 

Premiums iu course 
of collection 

Premiums accrued 
but unbilled 

Premiums receivable, beginning of year ........ ..... ... .. ..... . $ 63,725 $ 3 17,9 14 $ 

59,702 Change during year .... ... .. .... ..... ....... .... ..... ...... ............ .. 11 , 156 -------
Premiums receivable, end of year ..... .. ........ ................... $ 74,88\ $ 377,616 $ 

Total 

452,497 

202,062 

654,559 

Total 

38 1,639 

70,858 

452,497 --------
(b) Funds withheld 

The Company writes ce1iain business on a funds withheld basis. Under these contractua l arrangements, the 
Company's cedants withhold premiums due to the Company for the purpose of paying claims. The remaining net funds 
will be remitted to the Company after all policies have expi red and all claims have been sett led. Funds withhe ld as at 
December 31, 201 7 were$ 1,440,804 (December 3 1, 20 16: $ 1 ,502,558). 
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12. Resel'ves fol' losses and loss expenses 

The fo llowing table summarizes the Company's resetve for losses and loss expenses as at December 31, 2017 and 
2016 : 

December 3 1, 2017 Dcrcmbc•·J t , 2016 

Case resetves .............. ........ ............................................................. ... ........ $ 1,356,453 $ 1,133,002 

IBNR........... ................. .... .. ................... ........................... .......... ................. 2,487,839 1,605 ,20 1 ____ ___; __ 
Resetve for losses and loss expenses .......... ................................................ $ 3,844,292 =$===2=''=73=8=''=20=3= 

The following table represents an analysis of paid and unpaid losses and loss expenses incurred and a reconcil iation 
of the beginning and ending unpaid losses and loss expenses for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Ycn rs Ended Dccembc•· Jl, 

20 17 2016 

Resetve for losses and loss expenses, beginning of year .......................... $ 2,738,203 $ 2,763,405 

Loss resetves recoverable ........ ... ...................... ....................................... . (221 ,963) ( 128,437) -------
Net resetves for losses and loss expenses, beg inning of year .................. . 2,5 16,240 2,634,968 

Net reserves acquired (a) ................ ............... .... .. .... .. ...... . ...................... ... . 23,753 

Increase (decrease) in net reserves for losses and loss expenses in respect of losses occurring in: 

Current year ........................................................................................... . I ,837,234 1,233,701 

Prior years .............................................................................................. . (209,994) (213,456) 

Total incurred losses and loss expenses .............. .. .. ................................ .. 1,627,240 1,020,245 

Foreign exchange loss (gain) ...................... ............ ................................ .. 48,110 (3 1 ,465) 

Less net losses and loss expenses paid in respect of losses occurring in: 

Current year ................... .. ...................................................................... . (556,562) (382,585) 

Prior years ...................... .. ............................. .......................... ............... . (730,366) (724,923) 

Total net paid losses ................ .. ....................... ........................................ . ( 1,286,928) (1,107,508) 

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses, end of year .............................. . 2,928,415 2,516,240 

Loss reserves recoverable .. .... ................... .. ............................................. . 915,877 221,963 

Resetve for losses and loss expenses, end of year .................................. .. $ 3,844,292 $ 2,738,203 

(a) Equals net reserves acquired of$42,575 1ess ncl reserves commuted al closing of$18,822. 

Incurred losses and loss expenses comprise: 

Ycnrs Ended DecembcrJl, 

2017 2016 

Gross losses and loss expenses ............................................................... .. $ 2,599,054 $ 1,144,741 

Reinsurance recoveries .................................... ....... .......... ....................... . (971,814) (124,496) 

Net incurred losses and loss expenses ...................................................... . $ 1,627,240 $ 1,020,245 
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The net favorable development on prior accident years by line of business is as follows: 

Line of business 

Specialty- Specialty-
Property Short-tail Other 

Year Ended December 3 1, 20 17 ... ...... ..... ............ $ (60,265) $ ( I 06,34 1) $ (43,388) 

Year Ended December 3 1, 2016 .......................... $ (98,957) $ (64,639) $ (49,860) 

$ 

$ 

Totnl 

(209,994) 

(2 13,456) 

The net favorable development on prior accident years for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 was 
primarily driven by favorable development on attritional losses. 

Short Duration Contract Disclosu res 

The Company has disaggregated its informat ion presented in the tables below by line of business. The Company 
has presented the below development tables for all accident years shown using exchange rates as at December 3 1,2017. 
All accident years prior to the current year have been presented using the current year exchange rate. 

(a) Loss Development Tables 

The loss development tables have been produced by line of business for accident years 20 12 through to 20 17. 
The Company determined that it was impracticable to produce lBNR by accident year by lines of business for years 
prior to 201 2 as the necessary data in original c urrency was not readily available. In addition, the Company prov ides 
treaty reinsurance products on a globa l basis for all of its lines of business and does not receive or maintain claims 
count information associated with its reserved c laims. As such, the Company has determined that it is impracticable to 
provide this information. 

The net reserves for losses and loss expenses related to the acquisitions of I PC, acquired on September 4, 2009, 
and Flagstone, acquired on November 30, 20 12, have been incorporated in the reserves for losses and loss expenses 
on a prospective basis. lPC and Flagstone were put into run-off as at the acquisition date of each. The prospective 
treatment for the acquisition of Flagstone was adopted primarily as a result of the data necessary to produce the loss 
development tab les by accident year and by lines of business not being migrated over on acquisition as it was not 
requested or received and as a result does not exist within the Company's data systems. 

On May I, 2017, the Com pany acquired $23,753 of net loss and loss expense reserves in connect ion with the 
CRS acquisition. All of these net reserves acquired, as well as losses and loss expenses incurred and paid by CRS 
subsequent to the acquisition and reflected in the tables below, were incurred during acc ident year 2017. 
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Incurred Losses Hntl Loss Expenses, Net of Rei nsurance 

Accid~nt Yea•· 

2012 

2013 

2014 

201S 

2016 

2017 

Years Ended Decem he~" 31 , 

2012 2013 20 14 2015 2016 

<----------------------------- Ullttttdifed----------------------------> 

$ 552,395 $ 453,508 $ 429,047 $ 402,721 $ 400,098 

323,336 286,281 258,083 246,524 

296,069 257,104 243,001 

327,376 259,297 

383,6 11 

Total 

2017 

$ 398,738 

241 ,765 

239,8 19 

233, 11 3 

374,168 

734,099 

$ 2,221,702 

Cum ulative J>aid Losses ami Loss Expenses, Net of Reinsurance 

Years Ended Decemhe•·3 1, 

Accident Yea r 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

<------------------------------ Ultfltldifed--------------------------------> 

2012 $ 91,385 $ 227,849 $ 304,237 $ 332,185 $ 345,526 $ 351,990 

2013 46,886 139,763 198,900 219,327 227,784 

2014 69,233 167,544 205,454 218,990 

2015 59,556 148,790 187,322 

2016 94,990 221,464 

2017 249,150 

Total $ 1,456,700 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, before 2012, net of reinsurance <•) $ 129,079 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 894,081 

$ 

Uecembcr 31,2017 

Total of IBNR Reserves Plus 
Expected Development on 

Reported Losses 

22,880 

2,809 

7,350 

19,829 

72,735 

254,823 

(a) Includes reserves for losses and loss expense, net of reinsurance, of$63,1 15 and $8,854 related to Flagstone and lPC, respectively. 
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Specialty- Short-tail 

Incurred Losses and Loss Expenses, Net ofReinsnrNnce 

Accident Yea•· 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

2016 

2017 (a) 

Years Ended Decembe.-31, 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

<------------------------·------- Uumufited------------------------------·---> 

$ 5 10,209 $ 540,842 $ 524,038 $ 507,959 $ 502,57 1 

517,5118 526,814 487,869 475,726 

534,278 488,702 464,053 

650,899 638,896 

547,467 

Total 

2017 

$ 501 ,925 

468,482 

451.308 

603,099 

499,574 

759,658 

$ 3,284,046 

Cumulative Paid Losses and Loss Expenses, Net of Reinsm·ancc 

Years Ended Decem be•· 31, 

Accident Year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

<----------------------------- Untlttdited---------------------------------> 

2012 $ 82,047 $ 279,013 $ 383,656 $ 421,639 $ 437,616 $ 458,817 

2013 190,333 341 ,662 390,592 411,743 429,673 

2014 161,746 315,747 367,893 384, 115 

2015 237,786 380, 170 476,868 

2016 2 19,698 34 1,79 1 

201 7 (•) 28 1,542 

Total $ 2,372,806 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, before 2012, net of reinsurance <b) $ 139,279 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ I ,050,519 

$ 

ncccmher 31,2017 

Total of IBNR Reserves Plus 
Expected Oeveloprnent on 

Reported Losses 

17,777 

10,714 

18,650 

67,923 

77,838 

359, 125 

(a) The 2017 accident year includes incurred losses and loss expenses, and cumulative paid losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance, of 
$226,190 and $122,088, respectively, related to CRS. 

(b) Includes reserves for losses and loss expense, net of reinsurance, of$39,416 and $6,686 related to Flagstone and IPC, respectively. 
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Specially- Other 

Incurred Losses a nd Loss Expenses, Net of Reinsurance 

Accident Year 

2012 

2013 

2014 

2015 

20 16 

2017 

Years End ed December 3 1, 

2012 20 13 2014 2015 20 16 

<----------------·-·····- Uttlllttfited----------··-···-···-·······> 

$ 216,264 $ 197,247 $ 204,29 1 $ 203,835 $ 195,928 

235,082 243,870 225,748 209,797 

342, 174 336,283 334,675 

276,892 268,347 

282,5 19 

Total 

2017 

$ 192,820 

206,5 16 

337,593 

26 1,887 

260,609 

352,731 

$ 1,6 12, 156 

Cumulative Paid Losses and Loss Expenses, Net of Rcinsuntnce 

Years Ended December 31, 

Accident Yenr 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

<--------···-··-···-·············· Uttftttdited----------····················> 

20 12 $ 2 1,073 $ 57,617 $ 102, 127 $ 135, 135 $ 166,413 $ 176,937 

2013 13,538 55,833 99,483 137,793 167,023 

2014 24,09 1 96, 180 166,648 215,030 

2015 18,384 74,327 125,62 1 

2016 17,873 52,863 

2017 16, 197 

Total $ 753,671 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, before 20 12, net of reinsurance t•l $ 64,377 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, net of reinsurance $ 922,862 

$ 

Decem bet· 31,20 17 

Total ofiDNR Reserves Plus 
Expected Development on 

Reported Losses 

1,274 

12,649 

50,9 19 

70,752 

152,545 

299,799 

(a) Includes reserves lor losses and loss expense, net of rcinsuranee, of$6,02 1 ;md $98 related to flags tone and I PC, respectively. 

39 



Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts) 

(b) Recouciliatiou of Loss Developmeutluformatiouto tile Reserve for Losses ami Loss Expenses 

The following table reconciles the loss development information to the Company's reserves for losses and loss 
expenses as at Decem ber 31, 20 17: 

Decem ber 3 1, 2017 

Reserves for losses and loss expenses, net of rcinsu ranee 

Property... ............. .... ....... ....... ... ... ... ....... ..................................................... ........... ............ .... ..... ....... . $ 894,08 1 

1,050,5 19 

922,862 

Specialty- Short-tail .... ......... .......... .......................... ................. .............. ................................ .......... . 

Specialty -Other ....................................................... ....................... ........ .... ........ ... ......................... .. . 

Total reserves fm· losses a nd loss expenses, net of reinsura nce ............................... .......... ...... .... .. 2,867,462 

Loss reserves recoverable 

Property ........................ .................................................... .. ........... ..... .... .................... ··· .... ·····.·· ·.· ······· 575,042 

Specialty - ShorHai l ........................................................... ...... ...................... ................................ ... . 270,3 17 

Specialty - Other ................... ............ ........................................... ............ ... .... ........................... ........ . 70,5 18 

Total loss I"CSCI'Ves recoverable .................................................. ...... ... ........ .......... ............ .. .......... .. .. 9 15,877 

Unallocated loss expenses .. .. .... .. .. .......... ... ........ ... ... ....... ............ ....................................................... . 51,734 

P1·ovisions for unco llect ible reinsurance ..... .. .... ...... .. ..... ............................................ .. .......... ............ . 8,848 

Other .................................... ..................... .............. ......................................... ............ ..... .. ............... . 371 

Total rcsc•·vcs for losses and loss expenses .......... .. .................................................................... .... .. $ 3,844,292 

(c) Historical Loss Duration 

The following table summarizes the historic average annual percentage payout of incurred losses by age, net of 
reinsurance, as of December 31, 20 17: 

Average Annual Pe•·centage Payout of Incurred Losses by Age, Net of Reinsura nce {Una udited) 

December 31,2017 

Year I Year2 Ycar3 Yenr4 YearS Year6 Year 7 Ycnr8 \'enr 9 Yea•· 10 

Property ............................. 26.0% 37. 1% 19.0% 7.0% 3.4% 1.6% n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Specially- Short-tai l. .. .... ... 35.5% 30.7% 14.7% 5.2% 3.5% 4.2% n/a n/a n/a n/a 

Specialty- Other. ........... .... 7.2% 19.1 % 21.2% 16.7% 15.2% 5.5% n/a n/a n/a n/a 
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13. Reinsurance 

The Company's reinsurance balances recoverable at December 31, 2017 and 20 16 were as follows: 

December 31 , 2017 Decembe.-31, 2016 

Loss reserves recoverable on unpaid: 

Case reserves ............................... ................... .. ..................................... . $ 158,859 $ 69,663 

IBNR ................................................................. ... .................................. . 757,018 152,300 

Total loss reserves recoverable ............................................. ................... . . 9 15,877 221,963 

Paid losses recoverable ........................................................................... .. 55,876 14,085 

Total reinsurance recoverable ........................................ ................. ....... .. . $ 971 ,753 ======== $ 236,048 

(a) Effects of reinsurance on premiums written and ca m cd 

The effects of reinsurance on net premiums written and earned, and on losses and loss expenses for the years ended 
December 3 I , 20 17 and 2016 were as fo llows: 

Years Ended December31 , 

Premiums wrillcn: 2017 2016 

Treaty Reinsurance ............. .................. ............ ..... ..................... .. ......... .. .. $ 1,942,044 $ 2,001,977 

Direct ............. .... ... ... ................. .......................................... ............... .. ..... . 626,249 323,220 

(390,298) (230, 147) Ceded ................................. .................................................................... .. . ___ ____;____;...;._.......;.. 

2,177,995 Net premiums wri tten ................................................................................ $ =========== $ 2,095,050 

Years Ended Deccmber31 , 

Premiums ea rned: 2017 2016 

Treaty Reinsurance ....... ......................................... ................................ .... $ I ,954,958 $ 1,930,782 

Direct ...... .................................................................................................. . 885,339 294,376 

Ceded .............................. .. ...................................................................... .. (561,209) (226,064) -------
2,279,088 Net premiums earned ........................................ ........................................ ='$========== $ 1,999,094 

Ycnrs Ended Oecember31 , 

Losses and loss expenses: 2017 2016 

Treaty Reinsurance ................................................ ... .. ....................... ........ $ 1,802,545 $ 950,758 

Direct ................................................ ............. .................... ....................... . 796,509 193,983 

(97 1,814) ( 124,496) Ceded ......... .. .................... ... ..................................................................... . 
----------'-

1,627,240 Losses and loss expenses .................. ........................................................ $ ========= $ 1,020,245 
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(b) C redit risk 

The cession o f reinsurance does not legally d ischarge the Compa ny from its primary liabi lity for the fu ll amount 
of the (re)insurance policies it writes, and the Company is required to pay the loss and bear collection risk regard ing 
reinsurers' obligations under reinsurance and retrocess ion agreements. Validus records provisions for uncollectible 
reinsurance recoverable when collection becomes unlike ly due to the reinsurer 's inab ility to pay. 

To the extent the creditworthiness of the Company's reinsurers were to deteriorate due to adverse events affecting 
the reinsurance industry, such as a large number of major catastrophes, actual uncollectible amounts could be 
significantly greater than the Company's provision. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner 
consistent with the underlying loss reserves. 

The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monito rs conce ntration of credit risk arising 
from its exposure to individual reinsurers. The reinsurance program is generally placed with reinsurers whose rating, 
at the time of placement, was A- or better as rated by Standard & Poor's or the equivalent with other rating agencies. 
Exposure to a sing le reinsurer is a lso controlled with restrictions dependent on rating. As at December 31, 20 17,$964,813 
or 99.3% (December 3 1, 2016: $235,623 or 99.8%) of the Company's reinsurance balances recoverable were either 
fu lly collatera lized or recoverable from reinsurers rated A- or better. 

Information regarding the Company's concentration of credit risk arising from its exposure to individual reinsurers 
as at December 31, 20 17 and 201 6 is as follows: 

n ccc rnhel'31, 2017 Dcccmbcr 31, 201 6 

Reinsurance Rei nsu m n ce 
Recoverable % ofTolal Recoverable % ofTolal 

Top l 0 reinsurers .. .................................. .. ..... ......... .... $ 865,5 11 89.1 % $ 226,567 96.0% 

Other re insurers ' balances> $ 1 million ..................... 100,584 10.4% 5,088 2.2% 

Other re insurers' balances < $1 million ..................... 5,658 0.5% 4,393 1.8% 

Total ....... ....... ............. .......... .. ... .. .... ................. .......... $ 971,753 100.0% $ 236,048 100.0% 

l..)ecember 31, 2017 

Reinsurance 
Top 10 Rcins u•·e•·s Rating ltecove.-able % of'l'o ta l 

Fully collateralized reinsurers ........................... .................................. . NR $ 494,724 50.8% 

Munich Re ........ ..... ... ................ .............. ... .... .... .................................. . AA- 82,975 8.5% 

Federal Crop Insurance Corporation ...... ..... .. ...................................... . (a) 68,745 7.1% 

Everest Re ... ..... ........... ..... ................ ................ ........ .............. ........... .. . A+ 52,056 5.4% 

Qatar Insurance Company ....................................... .. ............ .............. . A 50, 160 5.2% 

Swiss Re ................................................................. .. ........................... . AA- 49,092 5.1% 

Markel .... ................. ... ........................................................................ .. A 21,978 2.3% 

Lloyd's Syndicates .... ............................... ........................................... . A+ 20,570 2.1% 

Chubb .. ... .. ................................................... .. ........................ .............. . AA 13,961 1.4% 

Manufacturers P&C Limited ................... .. .......................................... . A+ 11,250 1.2% 

Total ......... ................ ........ .............. .. ................... .... ... .................... ..... . $ 865,511 89.1% 

NR: Not rated 

(a) The Company participates in a crop reinsurance program sponsored by the U.S. federal government. The Company remains obl igated for 
amounts ceded in the event that its reinsurers or retrocessionaires do not meet their obligations, except for amounts ceded to the U.S. federal 
government in the Insurance segment agriculture line of business. 
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December JJ , 2016 

ReinsurAnce 
Top I 0 Rcinsn•·crs RAting Rccovcmblc % of'l'otal 

Fully collatera lized reinsurers .................. ........................................... . NR $ 11 9,559 50 .6% 

Swiss Re .............................. .... ....... .. .. ...... .......................... .... ... .. ..... .. . . AA- 58,191 24.7% 

Hamilton Re .. ................................................ .. ................................... .. A- 10,343 4.4% 

Munich Re ............... .............. ............... .......... ................... ......... ......... . AA- 8,211 3.5% 

National Indemnity Company ....... ....... ................ ... ......... .... ........... .... . AA+ 7,582 3.2% 

Toa Re .............. ............................ .. .. ........... ...... ...... ...................... ..... . , A+ 7,353 3.1% 

Hannover Re ................................ .. .. ...... ............. ........... ............... ...... . AA - 5,947 2.5% 

Allied World Re ................................................................................. .. A 3,942 1.7% 

Merrimack Mutual Fire Insurance .............. ... .. .... .................. ............ .. A+ 2,868 1.2% 

Renaissance Re .............. ...... ....... ......... ............................ ........ .... ....... . AA- 2,571 1. 1% 

Totnl .............................................................................. ...................... . $ 226,567 96.0% 

NR: Not rated 

14. Shne cnpital 

(a) Authorized and issued 

The Company's authorized share capital is I ,000,000 common shares with a par value of $1.00 each. 

On October 19, 2005, the Company issued I ,000,000 common shares at a price of$1,000.00 each. Proceeds from 
this issuance were $ 1,000,000. 

(b) Capital contributions and distributions 

During the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company received capital contributions from and made capital 
distributions to Valid us Holdings of$250,000 and $ 11 5,000, respectively (20 16: $100,000 and $290,000, respectively). 

(c) Dividends 

The Company paid dividends to Validus Holdings of$111 ,000 du ring the year ended December 3 1, 20 17 (20 16: 
$nil). 

I 5. StocJ' plans 

(a) Long Term Incentive Phw 

Valid us Holdings ' Amended and Restated 2005 Long Term Incentive Plan ("L TIP") provides for grants to employees 
of options, stock appreciation rights ("SARs"), restricted shares, restricted share units, performance shares, dividend 
equivalents or other share-based awards. The total number of shares reserved for issuance under the LTIP are 2,753,292 
shares of which 702,305 shares are remaining. The LTIP is administered by the Yalidus Holdings Compensation 
Comm ittee of the Board of Directors. No SARs have been granted to date. The grant date fair value of each award is 
established at the fair market value ofValidus Holdings' common shares at the date of grant. 

(i) Restricted share awards 

Restricted shares granted under the LTIP vest either pro rata or I 00% at the end of the required service period and 
contain certain restrictions during the vesting period, relating to, among other things, forfeiture in the event oftermination 
of employment, and transferability. Share compensation expenses of$9,857 were recorded in connection with restricted 
share awards for the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016: $9,814). The expenses represent the proportionate accrua l 
of the fair value of each grant based on the remaining vesting period. 
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Activity with respect to unvested restricted share awards for the years ended December 31, 20 17 and 2016 was as 
follows: 

2017 

Restricted 
Share Awards 

Restricted share awards outstanding, beginning of 
year ............... ...... ........ .. ... ... ... .................... ............. . 670,322 $ 

Transferred in due to employee movement .... .... ... .. . 22,035 

Restricted share awards outstanding, beginning of 
year, as adjusted ........... ..................................... ...... . 692,357 $ 

Granted .................................... ... ........................ ..... . 173,049 

Vested .. ... .... ....... .. .. .............. ............. ........................ . (277,3 19) 

Forfeited ..... .......... ............ ......... .. ........... ... ............... . 

Restricted share awards outstanding, end of year .. .... . 588,087 
===== 

$ 

Years Ended Dcccmber· JJ, 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

41.80 

36.25 

41 .62 

52.96 

41.74 

44.90 

2016 

Restricted 
Share Awards 

666,939 $ 

17,608 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

39.53 

38.09 

684,547 $ 39.49 

145,406 49.07 

( 157,662) 38.37 

(1 ,969) 50.79 -----
670,3 22 $ 41.80 

==== 
At December 31, 2017, there were $15,332 (December31 , 2016: $15,783) of total unrecognized share 

compensation expenses in respect of restricted share awards that are expected to be recognized over a weighted-average 
period of 2.4 years (December 3 1, 2016: 2.3 years). 

(ii) Restricted share units 

Restricted share units under the LT1P vest either ratably or I 00% at the end of the required service period and 
contain cetta in restrictions during the vesting period, relating to, among other things, fotfeiture in the event oftennination 
of employment, and transferabili ty. Share compensation expenses of $736 were recorded for the year ended 
December 3 1, 20 17 (20 16: $1 ,01 0). The expenses represent the propot1ionate accrual of the fair va lue of each grant 
based on the remaining vesting period. 

Activity with respect to unvested restricted share units for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 20 16 was as 
fo llows: 

Year·s Ended OecembcrJl , 

201 7 20 16 

Weighted Weighted 
Average Average 

Restricted Gmnt Date n estricted Grant Date 
Share Units Fair Value Shnre Units Fair Value 

Restricted share units outstanding, beginning of year 62,133 $ 40.11 104,1 20 $ 38.1 3 

Transferred out due to employee movement .... ..... .. . (39,763) 38.93 -----
Restricted share units outstanding, beginning of year, 

as adj usted ....... .... ........ ... ... ........... .......................... . 62,133 $ 40.1 1 64,357 $ 37.64 

Granted ... .......................................... ...... ........ ....... .. . 8,052 53.40 12,940 48.69 

Vested ........ .... ....................... ..... .... .... .............. ......... . (1 3,168) 41.45 (16,949) 37. 16 

Issued in lieu of cash dividends .......... .. ...... ............. . 1,675 40.93 1,785 38.84 -----
Restricted share units outstanding, end of year ........ .. . 58,692 

= ==== 
$ 41 .65 62,133 $ 40.11 
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At December 31,2017, there were $1,050 (December 3 1, 20 16: $1,342) of total unrecognized share compensation 
expenses in respect of restricted share units that are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 2.4 
years (December 31, 2016: 2.4 years). 

(iii) Performance share awards 

Performance share awards vest three years after the grant date, with the grant date fa ir value of each share awarded 
recognized evenly over this period. The number of performance shares in itially granted is adjusted via "conversion 
adjustments" to reflect the compounded growth in the Dividend-Adjusted Book Value per Diluted Share over the three 
years. The cumulative compensation expense recognized and unrecognized as at any reporting period date represents 
the adjusted estimate of performance shares that will ultimately be awarded, valued at their original grant date fair 
values. 

Share compensation expenses of$ 1,053 were recorded for the year ended December 3 1, 20 17 (2016: $793). The 
share compensation expenses represent the proportionate accrual of the fair value of each grant based on the remai ning 
vesting period. 

Activity with respect to unvested performance share awards for the years ended December 3 1, 20 17 and 20 16 was 
as follows: 

Years Ended OeccmherJ l , 

Performance share awards outstanding, beginning of 

2017 

r e•·fonnance 
S hare Awards 

year .......... .. ..................................... ...... ...... ............. 64,673 $ 

Granted ................ ............ .... .... .. ...... ................... .. .... 32,631 

Vested.. ...... .. ..... ...... ... .......... ... ....... ......... ... ... ....... ... ... (8,546) 

Weighted 
Average 

Grant Date 
Fair Value 

45.63 

53.40 

37.33 

37.33 Conversion adjustment.... ......................................... ( 4,274) 
--------~----------

Performance share awards outstanding, end of year.. . 84,484 $ 49.89 
==== 

201 6 

Weighted 

Performance 
Ave.-age 

G.-ant DHtc 
S ha re Awards Fair Value 

22,762 $ 42.1 4 

37,637 48.69 

4,274 37 .33 

64,673 $ 45.63 

At December 31, 201 7, there were $2,299 (December 3 1, 20 16:$1 ,795) of total unrecognized share compensation 
expenses in respect of performance share awards that are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 
2.0 years (December 31,20 16: 2.2 years). 

(b) Total share compensation expenses 

The breakdown of share compensation expenses by award type was as fo llows: 

Years Ended DeccmbcrJI , 

2017 2016 

Restricted share awards .................................................... .. .......................................... . 9,857 9,8 14 

Restricted share units ......................................... ... .... ............ ........................ ................ . 736 1,010 

Performance share awards .... ..................... ........................... .... ....................... .. ........ ... . 1,053 793 

Total share compensation expenses .. ... ... ........ .......... ........... ..... .... ............. ................. ======== ='======= $ ] 1,646 $ 11 ,617 

The Company recognized $(213) of associated tax (expense) for the year ended December 3 1, 2017 (20 16: benefits 
of$1,522). The Company also recognized $ 1, 187 of net windfa ll taxes during the year ended December 3 1,2017 (2016: 
$569) in relation to share vestings and option exercises. 
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16. Retirement and pension plans 

(a) Defined benefit plans 

Certain sen ior executives and retired selected key employees of our U.S.-based insurance operations participate 
in non qua li fied, unfunded, de fined benefit plans. Benefi ts for these plans are based on fi na l average earnings, social 
security benefits earned at retirement date and years of service. 

The assumptions used to determine net periodic pension expense for the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016 
are as fo llows: 

Discount rate .... ... .... ....... ......... ....... .......................... .......... ... ........ ................... . 

Increase in compensation levels rate ................................................ .. ........ ...... . 

Ye:u-s Ended Decem be•· 31, 

20 17 

3.75% 

5.00% 

2016 

The assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as at December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016 are as fo llows: 

2017 

Discount rate ...... .......... .. .. ........................ ... ... .. .. ........ .......... .... ........... ...... ....... . 

Increase in compensation levels rate ............... ...... ................ .. ......... .... .. .... ..... .. 
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The fo llowing tables present a reconcil iation of the beginning and ending funded status and the net amounts 
recognized for the defined benefit plans for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016: 

Change in benefit obligation: 
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year ................................................ $ 

Service cost ..... .................................... ... ...... ......... ................. .................. .. ... . 

Interest cost ..... .................... ................................ ... ...................................... .. 
Actuarial (gains) losses ..................................... ... ..... ... ........... .. .................... . 

B enefit payments ..................................................................................... ...... . 
Settlements ................................................................... ................... .. .. ... ...... .. 

--=------"-'---". 
Projected benefit obligation, end of year .......................................................... $ 

Change in plan assets 

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year...................................................... $ 
Employer contributions ................................................................................ .. 
Benefi t payments ....... .... ................................... ....................... .......... .. ..... ..... . 

Sett lements ................................................................................................ .. ... ----~-~ 

Fair value of plan assets, end of year ................................ ....... ................... ... .. . -------

Funded status at end of year ........ .................................. .. ......................... ... ...... =$'=========== 

Net amount recognized in accounts payable and accrued expenses ............ ..... $ 

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) consist of: 

Net (gain) loss........ ................... ......................... ........... .................................... $ 
Prior service credit .... .................................... ..... .. ........................................ ... . . -------
Net amount recognized ... ........ ........................ ..... ........ .. ........................ ..... ...... =$=====±===== ========= 

20 17 

Projected benefit obligation .................. .. .. ...... ....... ....... ....... ................ ......... . ... $ 

Accumulated benefit obligation ........................................................................ $ 
Fair value of plan assets.... ....................... .............. ........................................... $ 

Decem be•· 31, 

11 ,955 $ 
10,666 $ 

$ 

2016 

16,979 

13,480 

The components of net periodic pension expense for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 20 16 are as follows: 

Yca•·s t~nded Oecembe•·31, 

2017 2016 

Service cost ....... ................................................... .... .. ..... .......................... ...... . . $ 1,005 $ 1,026 

Interest cost .................................. ................................. ................................... . 566 594 

Amortization of prior service cost .............................................................. ..... . (2) 

Alnortization of net loss ................................................................................... . 158 374 

Net periodic benefit cost .. ... ... ........................ ................. .... ..................... ........ . 1,729 1,992 

Settlement loss ........ .......... ..... .............................. ...... ............. .. ...................... .. 537 356 

Net periodic pension expense ................ ...... .......... ......................................... ========= ======== $ 2,266 $ 2,348 
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Other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) for the years 
ended December 3 1, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

YcHrs l':nded Decemhe1'3l, 

20 17 2016 

Net (gain) loss ................................................................ ............................ .... ... $ (3,719) $ 1,473 

Am011ization of loss ....................................................................................... .. . (158) (374) 

Amortization of prior service cost .................................................................. .. 2 

Settlement loss ........... .. .... .... ............................... .......... .................................. .. ____ ....;____;_ (537) (356) 

(4,414) Total recognized in other comprehensive (income) loss ............................... =$========== $ 745 

Total recognized in net pension expense and other comprehensive 
incom e (befo re tax effects) ................................................................ ........ =$=' ====== ='====== (2,148) $ 3,093 

The estimated amount of net (gain) and prior service cost expected to be amot1ized from accumulated other 
comprehensive (loss) income into net periodic pension expense over the next fiscal year is$( I 0). 

The employer benefit payments/settlements for the year ended December 3 1, 201 7 were $2,876 (20 16: $1 ,836). 
As at December 3 L, 20 17, the projected benefits are as fo llows: 

P••ojcctcd Rcnelit 
Payments 

20 18 ...................... ....... ............... .. .............. ............... ................................ ........... ... .... .......... .. ........ . $ 336 

2019 ............. .... .. ....... ............ ..................... .. ................... .... ............................................................ .. 6,597 

2020 ........................................... .................................. ... ................................................................. . 2,696 

2021 ....................... ................................................ .. ........... ....................................... .. .................... . 66 

2022 ....................... .. .... .... .. .... ...................... ..... ........................... .......... ...... ... .... ... ......................... .. 64 

2023- 2026 ... ............... ... .. .. .. ... ......................... ... ........ ... ............. .. ............. .. .... .... ... ............ ......... .. . . 4,765 

Total benefit payments required ............... ..... ................................ ........ ............ ........................... . 
====== 
$ 14,524 

(b) Other pension plans 

The Company provides pension benefits to eligible employees through various plans which are managed externally 
and sponsored by the Company. The Company's contributions are expensed as incurred. The Company's expenses for 
its defined contribution retirement plans for the year ended December 31, 2017 were $5, 192 (20 16: $5,3 1 0). 
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17. Debt and financing arrangements 

The Company's financing structure is comprised of debentures payable a long with credit and other facilities. 

(a) Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures 

As part of the acquisition of Flagstone, the Company assumed Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures due 
2036 and 2037 (respectively, the "Flagstone 2006 Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures" and "Flagstone 2007 
Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures"). These debentures are redeemable quarterly at par. There were no 
redemptions made during the years ended December 3 1, 2017 and 2016. 

The Company's outstanding debentures as at December 3 1, 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

OcccmbcrJI , 2017 December 31,2016 

Defcn-ed debentures 

Flagstone 2006 Junior Subordinated .... ....... .... $ 135,608 $ 133,676 

Flagstone 2007 Junior Subordinated .... .. ......... 113,750 11 3,750 ----------------------
Total debentures payable ................................. $ 249,358 =$========2=47::::'::42=6= 

Future payments of principal of $249,358 on the debentures are all expected to be after 2022. 

The following table summarizes the key terms of the Company's junior subordinated deferrable debentures: 

Interest Interest 
Description Issuance date Issued Maturity date nate Jlayments due 

Flagstone 2006 Junior Subordinated 
Deferrable Debentures ................................... August 23, 2006 $ 135,608 September 15, 2036 3.540% <•I Quarterly 

Flagstone 2007 Junior Subordinated 
Deferrable Debentures .... ............................... June 8, 2007 $ 100,000 July 30, 2037 3.000% (a) Quarterly 

Flagstone 2007 Junior Subordinated 
Deferrable Debentures ............ ....................... September 20, 2007 $ 25,000 September 15, 2037 3.100% (a) Quarterly 

(a) Floating interest rate of three-month LIBOR plus amount stated for the Company, reset quarterly. 
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(b) Credit and other facilities 

The Company's outstanding credit and other facilities as at December 3 1, 2017 and 2016 were as follows: 

IJecember 31,2017 

Cash and 
investments 

Credit facility Commitment Outstanding <•l Dt·awn<"l 
pledged ns 
collateral 

$85,000 syndicated unsecured letter of credit facility $ 85 ,000 $ $ $ 

$300,000 syndicated secured letter of credit facility 00 300,000 92,979 118, 188 

$24,000 secured bi-lateral letter of credit facility 000000 24,000 5,765 22,340 

$25,000 I PC bi-lateral facility oooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooooo .. 25,000 7,754 

$236,000 Flagstone bi-lateral facility .................. ....... 236,000 115,680 184,569 

$65,000 unsecured revolving cred it facility ............... 65 ,000 

$100,000 unsecured revolving credit facility ............. 100,000 

FHLB secured facil ity .................. ...... 00 ...................... 484,096 206,000 206,000 251,767 

Total credit facilities ........................ oo .. oo .......... 00 ....... $ 1,3 19,096 $ 428, 178 $ 206,000 $ 576,864 

(a) Indicates utilization of commitment amount. 

(b) Represents drawn borrowings included in accounts payable and accrued expenses. 

December 31, 2016 

Cash and 
investments 

Credit faci lity Commitment Outstanding <•l IJrawn (h) 
pledged ns 
collateral 

$85,000 syndicated unsecured letter of credit facility $ 85,000 $ $ $ 

$300,000 syndicated secured letter of credit facility .. 300,000 121 ,428 157,597 

$24,000 secured bi-lateral letter of credit facility .... 00 24,000 4,553 48,097 

$25,000 IPC bi-lateral facility .................................... 25,000 8,807 

$236,000 Flagstone bi-lateral faci lity ............ .......... 00. 236,000 156,375 216,458 

Total credit facilities ................................................. $ 670,000 $ 291,163 $ $ 422,152 

(a) Indicates utilization of commitment amount. 

(b) Represents drawn borrowings included in accounts payable and accrued expenses. 

(i) $85,000 syndicated unsecured letter of credit facility ami $300,000 syndicated secured letter of credit 
facilily 

On December 9, 20 15, Validus Holdings, the Company and certain designated subsidiaries of Validus Holdings 
(the " Account Parties") entered into a $85,000 five year unsecured facility (the "Five Year Unsecured Facility") and a 
$300,000 five-year secured credit facility (the "Five Year Secured Facility" and together with the Five Year Unsecured 
Facility, the "Credit Facilities"). The Credit Facilities provides for letter of credit ("LOC") and revolv ing credit 
avai lability for the Account Parties and were provided by a syndicate of commercial banks. 

As of December 31, 2017, there were $nil of outstanding LOCs under the Five Year Unsecured Faci lity 
(December 3 1,2016: $nil) and $92,979 ofoutstandingLOCs under the Five Year Secured Facility (December 31,2016: 
$121 ,428). As of December 31, 2017, Valid us Holdings was in compliance with all covenants and restrictions under 
the Credit Facilities. 
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(ii) $24,000 secured hi-latera/letter of credit facility 

The Company is patty to an evergreen secured bi-lateral LOC facility with Citibank Europe pic (the "Secured bi­
lateral LOC facility"). As of December 31, 20 17, $5,765 ofLOCs were outstanding under the Secured bi-lateral LOC 
facility (December 31, 20 16: $4,553). The Secured bi-lateral LOC facility has no fixed term ination date and as of 
December 31,20 17, and throughout the rep01ting periods presented, the Company was in compliance with all covenants 
and restrictions under the Secured bi-lateral LOC facility. 

(iii) $25,000 !PC bi-lateral facility 

The Company assumed an existing evergreen LOC faci lity through the acquisition ofiPC Holdings, Ltd. (the "I PC 
bi-lateral facility"). As of December 31, 20 17, $7,754 of LOCs were outstanding under the IPC bi-lateral fac ility 
(December 31,20 16: $8,807). As of December 31,2017, and throughout the reporting periods presented, the Company 
was in compliance with all covenants and restri ctions under the TPC bi-lateral facility. 

(M $236,000 Flagstone bi-lateral facility 

As patt of the acquisition of Flagstone, the Company assumed an evergreen LOC Master Agreement between 
Citibank Europe pic and Flagstone Reassurance Suisse, S.A. (the "Flagstone Bi-Lateral Faci lity"). As of December 31, 
2017,$ 11 5,680 ofLOCs were outstanding under the Flagstone Bi-Lateral Facility (December 31,2016: $ 156,375). As 
of December 3 1, 20 17, and throughout the rep01ting periods presented, the Company was in compliance with all 
covenants and restrictions under the Flagstone Bi-Lateral Facility. 

M $65,000 unsecured reJio/Jiing credit facility am/ $100,000 unsecured re po/Jiing cretfitfacility 

On August 7, 20 17, Validus Holdings and the Company entered into a $65,000 unsecured revolving credi t faci lity 
with Barclays Bank PLC, as the lender (the "Barclays Unsecured Revolving Facility") expiring August 6, 2018. Loans 
under the Barclays Unsecured Revolving Facility will be available for the general corporate and working capital purposes 
ofValidus Holdings. Borrowings under the Barclays Unsecured Revolving Facility bear interest at the base rate (the 
higher of (i) the prime rate quoted in the Wall Street Journal, (ii) the federal reserve bank effective rate plus 0.50%, 
and (iii) the adjusted LIBOR rate plus 1.0%) or the adjusted LlBOR rate applicable to such loans, plus an appl icable 
rate. 

Also on August 7, 2017, Validus Holdings and the Company entered into a $ 100,000 unsecured revolv ing credit 
facility with HSBC Bank USA, National Association, as the lender (the "HSBC Unsecured Revolving Facility" and 
together with the Barclays Unsecured Revolving Facility, the "Barclays and HSBC Unsecured Revolving Credit 
Facilities") expiring December 31, 2019. Loans under the HSBC Unsecured Revolving Facility will be avai lable for 
the general corporate and working capital purposes of Validus Holdings. Borrowings under the HSBC Unsecured 
Revolving Facility bear interest at the base rate (the higher of (i) the prime rate an nounced by HSBC Bank USA, 
National Association, (ii) the higher of the federal reserve bank effective rate the overn ight bank funding rate plus 
0.50%, or (iii) the adjusted LIBOR rate plus 1.0%). 

As of December 31, 20 17, there was $65,000 (December 31, 2016: $nil) of available credit under the Barclays 
Unsecured Revolving Facility and $ 100,000 (December 3 1, 20 16: $nil) of available credit under the HSBC Unsecured 
Revolving Facility. 

The Barclays and HSBC Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilities contain covenants that include, among other things 
(i) the requirement that Validus Holdings initially maintain a minimum level of consolidated net worth of at least 
$2,789, 131 and, commencing with the end of the fiscal quatter ending September 30, 20 17, to be increased quarterly 
by an amount equal to 25% of the Company's consolidated net income (i f positive) for such quarter plus 50% of the 
aggregate increases in the consolidated shareholders ' equity of Validus Holdings during such fiscal quarter by reason 
of the issuance and sale of common equity interests ofValidus Holdings, including upon any conversion of debt securities 
of Validus Holdings into such equity interests, (ii) the requirement that Val idus Holdings maintain at all times a 
consolidated total debt to consolidated total capital ratio not greater than 0.35:1.00, and (ii i) the requi rement that the 
Company and any certain other material insurance subsidiaries maintain a financial strength rating by A.M. Best of not 
less than " B++" (Fair). In addition, the Barclays and HSBC Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilities contain customary 
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negative covenants applicable to the Company, including limitations on the ability to pay dividends and other payments 
in respect of equity interests at any time that Va lidus Holdings is otherwise in default with respect to certain provisions 
under the respective Credit Facilities, limitations on the ability to incur liens, sell assets, merge or consolidate with 
others, enter into transactions with affi liates, and limitations on the ability of its subsidiaries to incur indebtedness. The 
Barclays and HSBC Unsecured Revolving Credit Facilities also contain customary affirmative covenants, 
representations and warranties and events of default for credit facilities of its type. 

As of December 3 1,201 7, and throughout the repot1i ng periods presented, Yalidus Holdings and the Company were 
in compliance with all covenants and restrictions under the Bm·clays and HSBC Unsecured Revolving Facilities. 

(vi) Federal Home Loan Baulc of New Yo ric ("FH LB ·~ secured facility 

On August 16, 2017, the Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiary Western World, became a member of the 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York ("FHLB"), which provides the Company with access to a secured asset-based 
borrowing capac ity (the "FHLB Secured Facility"). Loans under the FI-ILB Secured Facility are avai lable for the 
Company's genera l corporate and working capital purposes. The Company's borrowing potential is based on the 
financia l condition and eligible collateral ava il abi lity of the Company's U.S. based insurance subsidiaries. Currently 
FHLB limits the borrowing capacity at 30% of each member company's statutory admitted assets as o r the previous 
reporting quatter. 

As at December 3 1,2017, the Company's maximum borrowing capacity was $484,096. As at December 31,2017, 
the Company 's borrowings under the FHLB Secured Facility totaled $206,000, and had a weighted-average interest 
rate associated with them of 1.59%. The Fl-ILB Secured Facility has no fixed termination date. 

The Company is required to pledge a minimum level of collateral, including securities pledged as collateral, as 
specified in writing by the Fl-ILB in order to maintain its borrowing potential. At December 31, 2017, the Company 
had pledged assets of $25 1,767 as collatera l in support of borrowings under the FHLB Secured Facility. As of 
December 3 1,201 7, and throughout the reporting periods presented, the Company was in compliance with all covenants 
and restrictions under the FHLB Secured Facili ty. 

(c) Finance expenses 

Finance expenses consist of interest on the Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures, credit facility fees, bank 
and other charges as fo llows: 

Yea rs Ended DccemherJI, 

201 7 2016 

Flagstone 2006 Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures.......... .. ............ $ 6,245 $ 5,628 

Flagstone 2007 Junior Subordinated Deferrable Debentures .................... .. .. 4,855 4,279 

Cred it facilities ..................... ... ....... ... .......................... .... .. . .. .............. .......... . 2,014 2,060 

1,3 15 190 Bank and other charges .............. ................................................................. .. ____ ___;, __ 
14,429 $ 12,157 Total finance expenses .. ................................................................. ....... .. ... .. =$========== ='========== 
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18. Income t-axes 

The Company provides for income taxes based upon amounts reported in the financial statements and the provisions 
of currently enacted tax laws. The Company is registered in Bermuda and is subject to Bermuda law with respect to 
taxation. Under current Bermuda law, the Company is not taxed on any Bermuda income or capital gains and has 
received an undertaking from the Bermuda Minister of Finance that, in the event of any Bermuda income or capital 
gains taxes being imposed, the Company will be exempt from such taxes until March 3 1, 2035. 

The Company has subsidiaries and branches with operations in several jurisdictions outside Bermuda, including 
but not limited to the U.S., Switzerland and Canada that are subject to relevant taxes in those jurisdictions. 

The Company's income (loss) before income tax for the years ended December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016 was generated 
in the following domestic and foreign jurisdictions: 

Veal'S l!:nded Oeccmbcl'31, 

2017 2016 

Domestic 

Bermuda ...................................................................... ........... ... ............. .. .... ....... $ 62,947 $ 406,596 

Foreign 

U.S ...... .. .......... ..................................... .. ................. ...... ...... ..................... ..... .. .... . (61 ,746) 3,224 

Switzerland .................................................. ......... .................................... ........ .. . 8,989 ( I ,084) 

Canada ..................................... ...... ........................................................ ...... .... ... . 1,251 2,599 

Other ............................................................................................................. ...... . ___ __..;. __ 16,747 26,392 

Total income before income taxes ......................................................................... $ 
====== 

28,188 $ 437,727 

Income tax (benefit) expense is composed of both current and deferred tax attributable to U.S. and Non-U.S. 
jurisdictions as fo llows: 

Ycal's Ended Occcmbel'31, 

2017 2016 

Current income tax (benefit) expense 

u.s ............................................................................................. ........................ $ (629) $ 1,927 

Non-U.S. ........................................................................................................... (2,850) 1,313 ___ _.;._~----~-
Total current income tax (benefit) expense........................................................... . $ (3,479) _$ ____ 3.:.._,2_4_0_ 

Deferred income tax (benefit) 

U.S ............................................................... ... ................................... ... ... .......... $ (4,295) $ (3,487) 

Non-U.S............................................................................................................ (2,635) (18,771) ------___ ..;..__~ 
Total deferred income tax (benefit).............................................................. ....... ... $ (6,930) $ (22,258) ___ ..;.._ __ 
Total income tax (benefit) 

u.s .............................................................................................................. ....... $ (4,924) $ (1,560) 

Non-U.S............................................................................................................ (5,485) (1 7,458) 
---~-~---~-~ 

Total income tax (benefit) ................................................................................... ... $ (10,409) =$===(=19='=01=8=) 
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The table below is a reconciliation of the actual income tax benefit for the years ended December 3 1, 2017 and 
20 16 to the amount computed by applying the effective tax rate of 0% under Bermuda law to income before taxes: 

Years l':ntlcd December 3 I , 

2017 2016 

Expected tax expense at Bermuda statutory rate of 0% ........................................... $ $ 

roreign tax rate differential ............................................... ..................................... . ( 14,641) 8,940 

Changes in valuation allowance .............. ............................................. .. ................. . (7,997) (37,003) 

Tax exempt income and expenses not deductible ................................................... . 792 (443) 

Impact of enacted changes in tax rates .................................................................. .. 12,952 8,725 

Prior years tax adjustments .................................................................................... .. {1 ,612) (2,083) 

Other ............................................ .................. .............................. ....... .. ... .. ............ .. 97 2,846 ------
Actual income tax benefi t........................................................................................ $ (10,409) 

============= 
$ (19,018) 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities primarily represent the tax effect of temporary differences between the carrying 
value of assets and liabilities for financial statement p1,1rposes and such values as measured by tax laws and regulations 
in countries in which the operations are taxabl e. Deferred tax assets may also represent the tax effect of tax losses 
carried forward. 

In assessing whether a deferred tax asset can be recovered and assessing the need for a valuation allowance, the 
Company considers all positive and negative evidence to determine whether it is more likely than not that the tax benefit 
of part or all of a deferred tax asset will be rea lized. The Company's framework for assessing the recoverability of 
deferred tax assets primarily considers taxable income in prior carryback years when permitted by law, future reversal 
of existing taxable temporary differences, available tax planning strategies and the expected occurrence of fu ture taxable 
income. The weighting of the positive and negative evidence is commensurate with the extent to which they can be 
objectively verified. 
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Significant components of the Company 's deferred tax assets and liabilities as at December 31, 2017 and 20 16 
were as fo llows: 

Dcccmbet· 31 , Dece mber 31 , 
2017 2016 

Deferred income tax assets •·elated to : 

Tax losses carried forward .............................. .. ... ... .............................................. . $ 11 3,766 $ 11 6,413 

Tax credits carried forward ........... ................... .................. ................... ................ . 2,61 1 5,469 

Deferred compensation ............................ ..................... ........... ..................... ....... .. 1,226 4,50 1 

Deferred interest expense ............................. .. .... ...................................... ... ....... . .. 5,755 2,039 

Discounting of loss reserves ...................... ......... ...................................... .......... . .. 5,137 9,938 

Unearned premiums reserve ....... ..... ......... .. ..... .... ... ... .. ................................ .. ...... .. 8,622 6,647 

Pension ........ ......... ................... .................. ................................... ............ ... ......... . 2,5 11 5,943 

Other ............. .. .... ........... .......................... ...... ..... .... .............................................. . 5,81 1 3,296 

Total gross deferred income tax assets ......... ................ ........................................... . 145,439 154,246 

Less: Valuation al lowances ..................................................................................... . (86,272) (98,062) 

Total net deferred income tax assets .... ........ ......... ........ ....................................... . $ 59, 167 $ 56,184 

Deferred income tax liabilities related to: 

Deferred acquisition costs ....... ...... ........... .............................................. ............... $ 5,962 $ 4,633 

Intangibles ............. .......... ...................... .... ......................... .................... ... ... .. ....... 4,230 7,583 

Unrealized appreciation on investments............... .. ........................ ......... .............. 1,477 3, 179 

Properties and fixed assets.................. ....... .... .... .. .................................. ... ............. 2,387 2,593 

Other............................ .... .. .. .................... .......... .................... ...... ............... .. ..... .... 2,022 2,640 ------
Total deferred income tax liabilities ........ .. ......... .. .... .. .......................... ................ 16,078 20,628 ------
Net deferred tax asset ......................................................... ................................... $ 43,089 $ 35,556 

======= 
As part of the 20 17 Tax Act, the U.S. statutory rate was reduced from 35% to 21%. Accordingly, the Company has 

re-measured U.S. deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the rate they are expected to reverse at in the future. As a 
result of the re-measurement, the Company's U.S. net deferred tax asset was reduced in 2017 by $ 12,934. 

Additiona lly, the 20 17 Tax Act prescri bed a new method of discounting loss reserves for U.S. tax purposes which 
requires companies to calculate a revised lax loss reserve adjustment for periods prior to 2018 and then recognize this 
change in taxable income ratably over an e ight year period. This would resul t in an increase to the deferred tax asset 
related to loss reserves and an equal increase to the deferred tax liability for the future taxable income, resulting in no 
impact to the net defetTed tax asset as reported above. The new methodology will calculate the discount using a different 
index for the calculation than it had in the past. Specifically, it will use a lagging 60 month average of the "High Quality 
Corporate Bond Yield Curve.'' The legislation did not specify however, the maturity segment to use, and left the 
development of the precise methodology and calculation of the factors to the regulatory process. The U.S. Treasury is 
expected to publ ish the discount rates for the new method in time for the filing due date of the 20 17 tax return on 
October 15, 20 I 8. Since the U.S. Treasury has not yet published the rates and any estimation of them could result in a 
materially different adjustment than what the ultimate adjustment will be, the Company has chosen to not include a 
provisional amount for the deferred tax asset and liability in regards to the change in discounting methodology because 
the Company does not believe we have adequate information to provide a reasonable estimate. The Company wi ll 
update its disclosure once the necessary information is avai lable. 
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The movement in the deferred tax asset on tax losses carried forward and re lated valuation allowance from 
December 31, 20 16 to December 31, 2017 can be explained as fo llows: 

Deferred Tax 
Asset on Tax 

Losses Ca rl'icd Valuation 
11m·wa •·d Allowance 

Balance, beginr1ing ofyear .. ..... ......... .... ... ... ........................................................ . $ 116,413 $ (98,062) 

Movement due to creation of tax losses carried forvvard ................... ..... ... ...... .. 12,490 (2,242) 

Movement due to use of tax losses carried forward ........................................ .. {8,765) 2,456 

Movement due to provision to return adjustments ........ .................. .......... ..... .. . 1,52 1 ( I ,521) 

Movement due to changes in enacted tax rates .............. .. . ..... .............. ... ..... .... .. (7,292) 3, 192 

Movement due to change in assessment of deferred tax asset recoverabi l ity ... . 9,304 

Forfeiture of tax losses carried forward ............................................................ . (2,576) 2,576 

Foreign exchange ....................................... ............. .... .. .... ................ ........ ... .... .. 1,975 ( 1,975) 

Balance, e nd of year ...... ..... ......................... ..... .............................................. .. ... . $ 113,766 $ (86,272) 

The above movement due to the creation of tax losses carried f01ward of $12,490 represents the tax benefit on 
current year tax losses that can be carried forward in the U.S. The related change in valuation allowance of $2,242 
reflects the tax expense for certain U.S. tax losses carri ed forward where a va luation allowance was provided. The 
movement due to the use of tax losses carried forward of$8 ,765 reflects the impact from the use of tax losses carri ed 
forward in Luxembourg ($6,309), Switzerland ($ 1 ,888) and Singapore ($568). The re lated movement in va luation 
allowance of$2,456 represents the tax benefit from the use oftax losses carried forward where a fu ll valuation allowance 
was previously provided (Switzerland : $1,888 and Singapore: $568). The movement due to provis ion to return 
adjustments of $ 1 ,52 1 represents prior year adjustments reflecting tax losses carried forward as per tax returns fil ed. 
The change in deferred tax asset of $7,292 and related valuation allowance of $3,192 reflects the impact of enacted 
changes in income tax rate, primarily in the U.S. The movement due to the change in assessment of deferred tax asset 
recoverability of$9,304 is due to the partial release of valuation allowances which had previously been app lied against 
deferred tax assets related to carried forward Swiss and Luxembourg tax losses acquired as part of the Flagstone 
acquisition. 

As at December 31, 20 17, the Company believes, after review of all available positive and negative evidence that 
it is more likely than not to have suffic ient future taxable income to realize a portion of these deferred tax assets. As 
such, the Company has recorded a patt ial release from the previously held valuation a llowance resulting in a current 
year tax benefit. The tax effect from forfeiture of tax losses carried forward of$2,576 results from the net reduction of 
Swiss tax losses association with the application of non-taxable income of Va lidus Re Swiss ' Bermuda Branch in 
accordance with Swiss law. The movement in foreign exchange of $1,975 represents the foreign exchange effect on 
the deferred tax asset and related va luation allowance for tax losses carried fotward in local currency in Switzerland. 
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As at December 3 1,20 17, the Company had net operating and capital losses carried fotward, inclusive of cumulative 
currency translation adjustments, as fo llows: 

Luxembourg Swilzerland United States Singapor·e Tot:rl 

20 18-2020 .......... ... .......... .. .. ...... ...... $ $ 145,669 $ $ $ 145,669 

2029-2038 .............. ... ...... ............ .... 52,108 52,108 

No expiration date ........................... 276,8 19 2,323 279,142 

Total ......... .. ......................... ... ......... 276,8 19 145,669 52,108 2,323 476,9 19 

Gross deferred tax asset ............ ...... 72,001 30,590 10,943 232 I 13,766 

Valuation a llowance ........... ..... ... ... .. (53,899) (27,347) (4,794) (232) (86,272) 

Net deferred tax asset.. .................... $ 18, 102 $ 3,243 $ 6,149 $ $ 27,494 

As of December 31, 2017, there are U.S. alternative minimum tax credit canyfotwards of $5,755 which do not 
expire. 

The va luation allowance as at December 31, 20 17 of $86,272 (20 16: $98,062) relates to tax losses carried fotward 
in Luxembourg, Switzerland, Singapore and the U.S. The Company believes it is necessaty to maintain a full valuation 
allowance against the deferred tax assets related to tax losses carried fotward in Singapore and the U.S., outs ide the 
U.S. consolidated group, after review of all available positive and negative evidence, including uncertainty regarding 
the ability of the concerned operations to generate future taxable income to utilize the losses carried f01ward and realize 
the deferred tax assets. The weighting of the positive and negative evidence is commensurate w ith the extent to which 
they can be objectively verified. 

As mentioned above, pattial releases of $9,304 (Luxembourg: $6,06 I and Switzerland: $3,243) of the valuation 
allowance previously held against a deferred tax asset related to tax losses carried forward was recorded as ofDecember 
31, 20 L 7. The Company believes, after review of all positive and negative evidence, it is now more likely than not to 
have sufficient future taxable income to realize a portion of these deferred tax assets. 

The U.S. consolidated group generated tax losses of$29,281 in 2017. The Company believes it is more likely than 
not that the U.S. consolidated group wi ll have sufficient future taxable income to utilize these losses within a reasonable 
period of time. 

The Company wi ll continue to monitor all available positive and negative evidence, including its expectations for 
future taxable income in the relevant jurisdictions, in relation to the recoverability of its existing deferred tax balances. 
If the Company's positive evidence continues to develop favorably in the foreseeable future, it is possible that further 
releases of the va luation allowances related to defetTed tax asset ba lances wil l occur. 

Recognition of the benefit of a given tax position is based upon whether a company determines that it is more 
likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination based upon the technical merits of the position. 
In evaluating the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold, the Company must presume the tax position will be subject 
to examination by a tax authority with fu ll knowledge of all relevant information. I f the recognition threshold is met, 
then the tax position is measured at the largest amount of benefit that is more than 50% likely of being real ized upon 
ultimate settlement. As at December 31, 2017 and 20 I 6, the Com pany had no accrued li abilities for tax, interest and 
penalties relating to uncettain tax positions. Interest and penalties re lated to uncertain tax positions would be recognized 
in income tax expense. 

The Company has undistributed earnings in several foreign subsidiaries. If such earnings were to be distributed, 
as dividends or otherwise, they may be subject to income and withholding taxes. As a general rule, the Company intends 
to only distribute eamings that can be distributed in a tax free manner with the exception of a few smaller subsidiaries 
where the Company has accrued a withholding tax for such future distributions. In the Uni ted States, the Company 
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intends to indefinitely reinvest any earnings such that no accrual of potential withholding tax was made. Were the 
Company to change its assertion that it would not indefinite ly reinvest earnings in its U.S. subsidiaries, the Company 
estimates it would need to accrue $878 of withholding tax payable on future distributions. 

The Company has open examinations by tax authorities in the U.S . (2013-2016) and Switzerland (20 14-20 15). 
The Company believes that these examinations will be concluded within the next 12 months and currently does not 
expect any material adjustments as a result of these audits. 

The Company has open tax years that are potentially subject to examination by local tax authorities in the following 
major tax jurisdictions: the U.S. (20 16-20 I 7), Switzerland (20 13-20 17) and Canada (20 14-201 7). 

19. Accumulated othe•· comprehensive income 

The changes in accumulated other comprehensive income, by component for the years ended December 3 1,20 17, 
and 2016 are as follows: 

Year Ended December· JJ, 2017 

Minimum pension 
liability Cash now hedge Total 

Balance, net of tax, beginning of year........................... 23 $ 23 $ $ 

Other comprehensive income, net of tax....... .... .. ........ 4,759 2,869 1,890 

Balance, net of tax, end ofyear ............................ ... .. .. ... ======'=== ======== ======4=,7=8=2= $ 2,892 $ I ,890 $ 

Year Ended December 31,2016 

Minimum pension liability 

Balance, net of tax, beginning of year ........................................................... $ 507 

Other comprehensive (loss), net of tax........................................................ ( 484) 
----------------------~--~ 

Balance, net of tax, end of year. ................................................................. .. .. =$=============2=3= 
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20. Commitments and contingencies 

(a) Concentrations of credit risl< 

The Company underwrites a significant amount of its reinsurance business through three brokers as set out below. 
There is credit risk associated with payments of (re)insurance balances to the Company in regards to these brokers' 
abi lity to fulfill thei r contractual obligations. These brokerage companies are large and well established, and there are 
no indications they are financially distressed. There was no other broker or (re)insured party that accounted for more 
than I 0% of gross premiums written for the periods mentioned. 

The fo llowing tab le shows the percentage of gross premiums written through each of these three brokers for the 
years ended December 31, 20 17 and 20 16: 

Droller 

Marsh & McLennan Companies, Inc .... .. ... ..... ............. ............ ................ .. .... . 

Aon Benfield Group Ltd ............. ........ .... ....... ................ ...................... ...... .... . 

Willis Towers Watson pic ........... ............................................... ..... .............. . . 

(b) Employment agreements 

Years Ended Deccmbct·JI, 

20 17 

24.3% 

12.4% 

11.4% 

2016 

29.4% 

13.7% 

12.8% 

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain individuals that prov ide for executive benefits 
and severance payments under certain c irc umstances. 

(c) Openting leases 

The Company leases office space and office equipment under operating leases. Total rent expense with respect to 
these ope rating leases fortheyearended December 3 1,2017 was approximately $5,471 (20 16: $3,332). Future minimum 
lease commitments are as fo llows: 

Deccmbu·Jl , 2017 

20 18 ..................................................................................... .. ..................................................... $ 5,8 11 

20 19...... .. .................. .... ........ ........... .................... ........ ............................... ... ..... ............ ....... .. ... 5,498 

2020........................................................... ............................................................... .... ............. . 5,084 

202 1..... ... ... ........................ .. ............................ ........................................................ ..... .... .. ...... .. 4,135 

2022............................................................................................................................................ 4, 149 

2023 and thereafter ......... .......... .............................................................................. ... ...... ..... .. ... 34,659 ______ :....___ 

Total ...... .. ................ ................ ............ .. ................................................... ... .. ... ......................... . =$=====5=9=,3=36== 

(d) Funds at Lloyd 's 

The Company operates in Lloyd's through a corporate member, Talbot 2002 Underwriting Capital Ltd ("T02"), 
which is the sole patticipant in the Syndicate 1183 (the "Talbot Syndicate"). Lloyd's sets T02's Economic Capital 
Assessment ("ECA") annually based on the Talbot Syndicate's business plan, rating environment and reserving 
envi ronment together with input arising from Lloyd's discussions with regulatory and rating agencies, and other parties . 
ThisECA is satisfied by syndicate net assets determined on a basis consistent with Solvency 11, an EU directive covering 
capital adequacy, risk management and regulatory reporting for insurers. Any syndicate net liabi lities on a Solvency IT 
basis are required to be funded in addition to the ECA. Such additional funds, known as Funds at Lloyd's ("FAL"), 
comprises cash and investments. The Company provided FAL in the amount of$66 1 ,600 during the fourth quarter of 
20 17 (20 16: $583,600). 

59 



Validus Reinsurance, Ltd. 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
For the Years Ended Decembea· 31,2017 aud 2016 
(Expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share and per share amounts) 

The amounts which are provided as FAL arc not available for distribution to Valid us Holdings for the payment of 
dividends. T02 may also be required to maintain funds under the control of Lloyd 's in excess of its capital requi rement 
and such funds also may not be avai lable for distribution to Va lidus Holdings for the payment of d ividends. 

(e) Investment affiliate commitments 

As discussed in Note 7(c), "Investments in investment affiliates". the Company has entered into agreements with 
the Aquil ine fi Genera l Partner, the Aquiline Ill General Partner, the Aquiline Tech General Partner and the Aquiline 
Armour General Partner, pursuant to wh ich it assumed total capital commitments at December 3 1, 2017 of $60,000, 
$ 100,000, $20,000 and $40,340, respect ively. The Company's remaining capital commitments relating to these 
agreements at December 3 1, 20 17 was $3,229, $66,285, $ 16, 142 and $40,340, respectively (December 3 1, 2016: 
$2,040, $62,031 , $nil and $nil , respectively). 

(t) Investments in operat ing affiliates 

At December 3 1, 20 16, the Company had e ntered into agreements with an A lphaCat ILS fund pursuant to which 
it has assumed total capital commitments of$25,000. During 20 17, a portion of the Company 's ini tial investment was 
returned and the Company assumed an additional capita l commitment of$25,000. The Company's remaining unfunded 
capital commitment to the AlphaCat I LS fund at December 31, 20 17 was $25,000 (December 31, 20 16: $1 0,000). 

(g) Fixed maturity commitments 

At December 31, 2017, the Company had an outstanding commitment to participate in certain secured loan 
faci lities through participation agreements with an established loan originator. The undrawn amount under the revolver 
facility participations as at December 31, 2017 was $22,082 (December 31, 20 16: $28,499). 

(h) Other investment commitments 

At December 31, 20 J 7, the Company had capital commitments in certain other investments o f $ 193,000 
(December 31, 20 16: $233,000). The Company's remaining unfunded capi ta l commitment to these investments at 
December 31, 20 17 was $41 ,299 (December 3 1, 20 16: $94,598). 

(i) Structured settlements 

As at December 31, 2017, the Company is contingently liable for the present value of amounts not yet due under 
annuities where the claimant is the payee for the amount of $3,203 (December 31, 20 16: $3, 186). 

21. Related pal'ty transactions 

The transactions listed below are classified as related pa1ty transactions as principals and/or directors of each 
counterparty are members of Valid us Holdings' board of directors. 

(a) Aquiline C apital Pal'tnet·s LLC ("Aquiline Capital") 

Group Ark /usura nee 

Christopher E. Watson, a director of the Company and senior principal of Aquili ne Capital, serves as a di rector of 
Group Ark Insurance Holdings Ltd. ("Group Ark"). P rior to August, 20 16, Aquiline Capital was also a shareholder of 
Group Ark. 

Pursuant to reinsurance agreements with a subsidiary of Group Ark, the Company recognized gross premiums 
written during the year ended December 31, 2016 of$3,157 with $292 included in prem iums receivable at December 
31,2016. The Company also recognized reinsurance premiums ceded during the year ended December 31, 20 16 of 
$40. The Company recorded $798 of loss reserves recoverable at December 31,2016 and earned premium adjus tments 
of $3, 11 5 during the year ended December 31, 20 16. 
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Wellington 

Aquiline Capital are shareholders of Wellington Insurance Company ("Wellington") and Christopher E. Watson 
serves as a director of Wellington. 

Pursuant to reinsurance agreements with a subsidiary of We llington, the Company recogn ized gross premiums 
written during the year ended December 3 1, 20 17 of$4, 196 (20 16: $2,860) with $211 included in premiums receivable 
at December 31, 20 17 (December 31, 2016: $666). The Company also recognized premium adjustments during the 
year ended December 3 1, 20 17 of$4,377 (20 16: $2,603). 

Aquiline 11, Aquiline Ill, Aquiline Tech ami Aquiline Armour 

Jeffrey W. Greenberg and Christopher E. Watson, directors oft he Company, serve as managing principal and senior 
principal, respectively, of Aqui line Capital. Additional information related to the Company's investments in Aquiline 
II, Ill , Tech and Armour is disclosed in Note 7(c), "investments in Investment Affiliates.'' 

The Company had, as of December 31, 2017 and December 3 1, 2016, investments in Aquiline II, Ill, Tech and 
Armour with a tota l value of$ 1 00, 137 and $ 100,43 1 and outstanding unfunded commitments of$125,996 and $64,071, 
respectively. For the year ended December 31, 20 17, the Company incurred $2,863 (20 16: $2,874) in partnership fees 
associated with these investments. 

(b) Validus Holdings Entities 

Pursuant to reinsurance agreements with Talbot, an affiliate, the Company assumed net premiums earned of 
$77 1,730, incurred losses and loss expenses of$522,242 and policy acquisition costs of$33 1, 163 during the year ended 
December 3 1,2017 (20 16: $804,952,$437,460 and $337,544, respectively). At December 31,2017, the Company had 
deferred acquis ition costs of $90,781 , premiums receivable of $39,780 and funds withheld of $1 ,368,530 under these 
agreements (December 3 1, 20 16: $99,055, $40,937 and $1,41 1,766, respectively). The Company also had outstanding 
reserves for losses and loss expenses of$ 1, 150,306, unearned premiums of$464,6 17, reinsurance balances payable of 
$36,130 and accounts payable and accrued expenses of $578 under these agreements at December 3 1, 2017 
(December 3 1, 2016: $1,056,588, $491,754, $ 18,0 12 and 704, respectively). 

Pursuant to reinsurance agreements with AlphaCat, an affiliate, the Company ceded net premiums earned of 
$98,706, recovered losses and loss expenses of$ 1 09,993 and earned commissions of$1 1 ,527 (20 16: $89,540, $35,544 
and $ 10,733, respectively). At December 31, 2017, the Company had unearned commissions of $2,644, paid losses 
recoverable of $24,605, prepaid reinsurance of $20,803 and loss reserves recoverable of $124,099 under these 
agreements (December 31, 2016: $ 1,446, $nil, $ 12,849, and $4 1, II 0). The Company also had reinsurance balances 
payable of $40,775 at December 31, 2017 under these agreements (December 31, 2016: $26,497). 

At December 3 1,201 7 and 2016, the Company held fixed maturity investments of$60,200 re lating to the repurchase 
of principal amounts ofValidus Holdings ' 2007 Junior Subordinated Deferrab le Debentures due 2037, which generated 
net investment income of $2,529 during the year ended December 31, 2017 (20 16: $2,24 1 ). At December 31 , 2017, 
accrued investment income on this investment was $12 1 (December 3 1, 20 16: $1 05). 

As discussed in Note 8, "Fair value measurements, " the Company held other investments representing shares of 
Valid us Holdings with a fair value of$76,896 at December 3 I , 20 17 (Decem ber 31, 20 16: $90, 154), which generated 
net investment income of $2,491 during the year ended December 31, 2017 (20 16: $2,294 ). The change in unrealized 
losses on this investment were $( 13,258) during the year ended December 3 1, 2017 (20 16: gains of $14,290). 

(c) Other 

Certain shareholders of the Company and thei r affi liates, as we ll as employees of entities associated with di rectors 
and officers may have purchased insurance and/or reinsurance from the Company in the ord ina1y course of business. 
The Company does not believe these transactions lobe material. 
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22. Statutory and regulatory requirements 

The Company has operations which are subject to laws and regulations in the jurisdictions in which they operate, 
the most significant of wh ich are Bermuda, the United States and Switzerland. 

The Company's (re) insurance subsidiaries prepare their statutory financial statements in conformity wi th statutory 
account ing practices prescribed or permitted by the appl icable local laws and relevant regulatory authority. The statutoty 
financial statements may vaty materially from statements prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. 

The Company and its subsidiaries are required to maintain certain measures of solvency and liquidity which provide 
restrictions on declaring dividends and distributions. Statutory capital and surplus as at December 3 1, 20 17 and 201 6 
and statutory net income for the years ended December 3 1, 20 17 and 2016 for our (re)insurance subsidiaries based in 
our most significant regulatory jurisdictions were as follows: 

Statutory Capitnl nnd Surplus 

Requi•·ed 

December 31, 

2017 2016 

Bermuda .............................. .... . $ 676,930 $ 1,447,018 

United States ........ .. .. .. ............. . 

Switzerland ......... .................... . 

120,512 

3 15,000 

78,342 

267,000 

Actual 

December 31, 

201 7 2016 

4, 128,051 4,244,075 

376, 178 416,746 

846, 152 700,776 

Statutory Net Lncome (Loss) 

Years Ended Decembcr31, 

2017 2016 

$ 13,448 $ 477,624 

(7,968) 7,795 

39,570 30,231 

During the year ended December 31,2017, the Company paid dividends and made distributions to ValidusHoldings, 
Ltd. from the Company of$111 ,000 and $ 11 5,000, respectively (2016: $nil and $290,000). 

(a) Bermuda 

The Company has three Bermuda-based insurance subsidiaries: Validus Reinsurance (Switzerland) Ltd. (Bermuda 
Branch}, a Class 4 insurer; IPCRe Limited ("I PCRe"), a Class 3A insurer; and Mont Fot1 Re Ltd., a Class 3 insurer. 
Each of these Bermuda insurance subsidiaries is registered under the Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda, amendments 
thereto and related regulations (the "Insurance Act"). The Company also has investments in two Bermuda based 
insurance affiliates which are licensed as Special Purpose Insurers ("SPis") under the Insurance Act, A lphaCat Re 20 II , 
Ltd . and AlphaCat Re 201 2, Ltd. 

The Company's Bermuda based insurance subsidiaries are required to maintain minimum statutory capital and 
surplus equal to the greater of a minimum solvency margin ("MSM") and the Enhanced Capital Requirement ("ECR") 
where applicable. The ECR is equal to the higher of the MSM or the Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement ("BSCR") 
model or approved internal capital model. The BSCR for the relevant insurers for the year ended December 31, 2017 
wi ll not be filed with the Bermuda Monetaty Authority ("BMA") until April 2018. As a result, the required statutory 
capital and surplus as at December 31, 201 7, of $676,930 is based on the MSM of all relevant insurers, whereas the 
required statutory capital and surplus as at December 31, 2016 of$1,447,0 18 is based primarily on the December 31, 
2016 ECR, which exceeded the December 31, 2016 MSM of$732, 133. 

Actual statutoty capital and surplus includes capital held in suppmi ofFAL which is not available for distribution 
to the Company. For flll1her deta ils refer to Note 20, "Commitments and contingencies. " Also included in actual statutory 
capital and surplus are debentures payable of $249,358 (December 31, 2016: $247,426), which the BMA approved as 
other fixed capital during April 2017. At December 31, 201 7 and 20 16, the actual statutmy capital and surplus of the 
Bermuda based insurance subsidiaries exceeded the relevant regulatmy requirements. 

The ability of certain of these insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends to the Company is limited under Bermuda 
law and regulations. The Insurance Act provides that each of the Class 3A and 4 Bermuda subsidiaries may not declare 
or pay, in any financial year, dividends of more than 25% of its total statutoty capital and surplus (as shown on its 
statutory balance sheet in relation to the previous financial year) unless it files with the BMA at least seven days prior 
to the payment, an affidavit signed by at least two directors and such insurance subsidiary's principal representative, 
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stating that in their opinion such subsidiary will continue to satisfy the required margins following declaration of those 
dividends, however, there is no additional requirement for BMA approval. 

In addition, before reducing its total statutory capital by 15% or more (as set out in its previous year's statutory 
financial statements) each of the Class 3A and Class 4 Bermuda insurance subsidiaries must make application to the 
BMA for permission to do so; such application shall consist of an affidavit signed by at least two directors and such 
insurance subsidiary's principal representative stating that in their opinion the proposed reduction in capital will not 
cause such subsidiaries to fail to meet its relevant margins, and such other information as the BMA may require. The 
Insurance Act permits each of the Class 3 insurers to declare or pay any dividends during any financial year so long as 
it does not cause the insurance subsidiary to fail to meet its relevant margins subject to the restrictions set out herein 
and other than in respect of IPCRe. Class 3 insurers, before reducing by 15% or more of its total statutory capital, as 
set out in its previous year's financial statements, are required to apply to the BMA for its approval and provide such 
information as the BMA may require. 

As at December31 , 2017, the Company has the ability to distribute up to $1,482,231 (December 3 1, 2016: 
$1,506, 194) of unrestricted net assets as dividend payments and/or return of capital to Val idus Holdings without prior 
regu latory approval. 

The Company's primary restrictions on net assets of insurance subsidiaries consist of regu latory requirements 
placed upon the regulated insurance subsidiaries to hold minimum amounts of total statutory capital and surplus and 
other than the restriction on lPCRe noted above, there were no other material restrictions on net assets in place as of 
December 31 , 20 17. 

The Company maintains a branch office in Singapore. As the branch office is not considered a separate entity for 
regulatory purposes, the required and actual statutory capital and surplus amount includes amounts, as set out above, 
related to the applicable branch office. The branch office is subject to additional minimum capital or asset requirements 
in its country of domicile. At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the actual capital and assets for the branch exceeded the 
relevant local regulatory requirements. 

(b) United States 

The Company has three U.S. based insurance subsidiaries domiciled in New Hampshire: Western World Insurance 
Company, Tudor Insurance Company and Stratford Insurance Company, which are required to file financial statements 
prepared in accordance with statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted by the New Hampshire State 
Insurance Depatiment ("NHSlD"). 

State insurance laws and regu lations prescribe accounting practices for determining statutmy net income and 
equity for insurance companies. In addition, state regulators may pe1mit statutmy accounting practices that differ from 
such prescribed practices. The Company's U.S. based insurance company subsidiaries did not use such permitted 
practices. 

The Company's U.S. based insurance company subsidiaries are subject to certain Risk-Based Capital ("RBC") 
requirements as specified by the National Association of Insurance Commissioners. Under those requirements, the 
minimum amount of capital and surplus required to be maintained by a property/casualty insurance company is based 
on various risk factors. At December 3 1, 20 I 7 and 2016, the Company's U.S. based insurance company subsidiaries 
met the RBC requirements. 

New Hampshire insurance laws limit the amount of dividends Western World may pay to the Company in a I2-
month period without the approval of the NHSID. These limitations are based on the lesser of: (i) a maximum of 10.0% 
of prior year end statutory surplus as determined under statutmy accounting practices; or (ii) statutmy net income, not 
including realized capita l gains, for the 12-month period ending December 31 , next preceding, but shall not include 
pro rata distributions of any class of the insurer's own securities. In determining whether a dividend or distribution is 
extraordinary, an insurer may carry forward net income from the previous two calendar years that has not already been 
paid out as dividends. This carry-forward is computed by taking the net income from the second and third preceding 
calendar years, not including realized capital gains, less dividends paid in the second and immediate preceding calendar 
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years. As at December 31, 201 7, the maximum dividend that may be paid to the Company by its U.S. based insurance 
subsidiaries w ithout obtaining prior approval was $nil (December 31, 2016: $490). During the year ended December 31, 
2017, our U.S. based insurance subsid iaries paid dividends to the Company of$15,500 {2016 : $ 18,500). 

(c) Switzerland 

Yalidus Re Swiss is a soc iete anonyme headquartered in Zurich, Switzerland. The conduct of reinsurance business 
by a company headquatiered in Switzel'land requires a license granted by the Swiss Financial Market. Supervisoty 
Authority {"FINMA"). Validus Re Swiss maintains a branch office in Bermuda, Validus Re insurance (Switzerland) 
Ltd. (Bermuda Branch), a Class 4 insurer. 

Required statuto ty capital and surplus is based on the Target Capital requirements calculated under the Swiss 
Solvency Test ("SST") and includes both Valid us Re Swiss and its Bermuda branc h. At December 31, 2017 and 201 6, 
the actual capital and assets exceeded the re levant local regulatory requirements. 

Valid us Re Swiss is funded by equity in the form of paid in capital by shares and in share premium. Under Swiss 
corporate law as modified by insurance supervisory law, a non-life insurance company is obliged to contribute to 
statutory legal reserves a minimum of 20% of any annual profit up to 50% of statutory capital, be ing paid in share 
capital. Va lidus Re Swiss has been substantially funded by share premium. Share premium can be distributed to 
shareholders without being subject to w ithholding tax. However, the distribution of any specia l dividend to shareholders 
remains subject to the approval ofFfNMA whic h considers the maintenance of solvency and the interests of reinsureds 
and creditors. 

Validus Reinsurance (Switzerland) Ltd. (Bermuda Branch) is exempt from fi ling an Annual Statutory Financial 
Return and Annual Capital and Solvency Return but is subject to the minimum required statut01y capital and surplus 
requirements for Class 4 insurers and the SST. At December 3 1, 2017 and 201 6, the branch was in compliance with 
all relevant regulatory requirements. 

23. Subsequent events 

The Company has completed its subsequent events evaluatio n for the period subsequent to the balance sheet date 
of December 3 1, 2017 to April 17, 2018, the date the consolidated financial statements were avai lable to be issued. 

Merger Agreement 

On January 2 1, 2018, Valid us Holdings entered into a definit ive agreement and plan of merger (the "Merger 
Agreement") with AI G. The Merger Agreement provides that, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of cetiain conditions 
set fo ti h therein, Validus Holdings and its related subsidiaries wil l merge with an existing AIG subsidiary in accordance 
with the Bermuda Companies Act (the " Merger"), with Validus Holdings surviving the Merger as a wholly- owned 
subsidiary of AlG. 

The Merger is expected to close inmid-2018, subject to the approval ofValidus Holdings ' shareholders, regulatory 
approvals and other customary clos ing conditions. The Merger Agreement permits Validus Holdings to pay out regular 
quarterly cash dividends not to exceed $0.38 per common share, with its quatterly dividend for the second fiscal quarter 
for 2018 to be paid prior to the closing of the Merger even if such closing occurs prior to the regular record or payment 
date of such dividend. 

Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, immediately prio r to the effective time of the Merger, all common shares of 
Validus Holdings owned by the Company will automatically be canceled and shall cease to exist and be outstanding, 
with no consideration delivered in exchange nor any repayment of capital made in respect thereof. At December 31, 
2017, the Company he ld sharesofYalidus Holdings which had a fair value of$76,896. Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, 
the Company is unable to sell its shares of Yalidus Holdings prior to the clos ing of the Merger. As such, either before 
or concurrent with the c losing of the Merger, the value of the Company's investment in Valid us Holdings will be reduced 
to $nil , with a corresponding reduction to shareho lder 's equity. 
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